Planning Committee p—Y Vale

of White Horse
Ag e “ d a District Council

Contact: Susan Harbour, Democratic Services Officer
Telephone number 01235 540306

Email: susan.harbour@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: 29 April 2013

Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A meeting of the

Planning Commiittee

will be held on Wednesday 8 May 2013 at 6.30 pm
Council Chamber, The Abbey House, Abingdon

Members of the Committee:

Councillors

Robert Sharp (Chairman) Sue Marchant
Sandy Lovatt (Vice chairman) Aidan Melville
Eric Batts Jerry Patterson
Roger Cox Helen Pighills
Anthony Hayward Fiona Roper
Bob Johnston Margaret Turner
Bill Jones John Woodford

Substitute councillors
All other councillors trained in planning matters

A large print version of this agenda is available. In addition any
background papers referred to may be inspected by prior
arrangement.

Please note that this meeting will be held in a wheelchair accessible venue. If you would like
to attend and have any special access requirements, please let the Democratic Services
Officers know beforehand and they will do their very best to meet your requirements.

Margaret Reed
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Vale of White Horse District Council
Planning Committee agenda - Wednesday, 8th May, 2013

Page 1



Agenda

Open to the Public including the Press

Map and vision
(Page 5)

A map showing the location of the venue for this meeting is attached. A link to information
about nearby car parking is http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/transport/car _parking/default.asp

The council’s vision is to take care of your interests across the Vale with enterprise, energy
and efficiency.

1. Chairman's announcements

To receive any announcements from the chairman, and general housekeeping matters.

2. Urgent business

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be considered as urgent
business and the special circumstances which have made the matters urgent.

3. Cumulative Housing Figures
(Pages 6 - 8)

To receive an up date of housing figures relating to commitments for major housing schemes
to address the councils housing land shortfall.

4. Notification of substitutes and apologies for absence

To record the attendance of substitute members, if any, who have been authorised to attend in
accordance with the provisions of standing order 17(1), with notification having been given to
the proper officer before the start of the meeting and to receive apologies for absence.

5. Minutes

To adopt and sign as a correct record the minutes of the committee meeting held on 24 April
2013 (circulated separately).

6. Declarations of pecuniary interests and other declarations

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests, and other declarations, in
respect of items on the agenda for this meeting.

Vale of White Horse District Council
Planning Committee agenda - Wednesday, 8th May, 2013

Page 2



7. Statements and petitions from the public on planning applications

Any statements and/or petitions from members of the public under standing order 33, relating
to planning applications, will be made or presented at the meeting.

8. Statements, petitions and questions from the public on other matters

Any statements and/or petitions from the public under standing order 32 will be made or
presented at the meeting.

9. Materials

To consider any materials submitted prior to the meeting of the Committee.

Any materials submitted will be on display prior to the meeting.

Planning applications

All the background papers, with the exception of those papers marked exempt/confidential
(e.g. within Enforcement Files) used in the following reports within this agenda are held
(normally electronically) in the application file (working file) and referenced by its application
number. These are available to view at the Council Offices (Abbey House, Abingdon) during
normal office hours.

Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be reported
and summarised at the meeting.

10. Land off Draycott Road, Southmoor P12/V2653/FUL
(Pages 9 - 29)

Erection of 98 residential dwellings with associated open space, structural landscaping and
access. (Amended plans received 20 February 2013).

Recommendation: To authorise the head of planning, in consultation with the committee

chairman and vice-chairman, to grant planning permission, subject to:

1. Completion, within the agreed planning performance agreement period, of relevant section
106 agreements.

2. Conditions, referenced in the officer’s report.

11. Land to the north of 92 - 112 Milton Road, Sutton Courtenay

P13/V0233/FUL
(Pages 30 - 49)

Demolition of 110 Milton Road and erection of 34 dwelling houses with associated access.

Recommendation: To authorise the head of planning, in consultation with the committee

Vale of White Horse District Council
Planning Committee agenda - Wednesday, 8th May, 2013

Page 3



chairman and vice chairman, to grant planning permission subject to:

1. Completion within a month’s period of a drainage strategy to address the water
infrastructure issues relating to the site, together with a clear and quantified timescale for
the implementation of any works required under the drainage strategy, in agreement with
Thames Water, to ensure that all such works are completed prior to the commencement of
development on the site within the 12 month period.

2. Completion, within the agreed planning performance agreement period, of relevant section
106 agreements.

3. Conditions, referenced in the officer’s report.

12. Land adjoining Folly Park, Faringdon P13/V0344/FUL
(Pages 50 - 61)

Proposed development of 28 dwellings, including affordable housing, new access,
landscaping and associated works.

Recommendation: To authorise head of planning, in consultation with the chairman and vice-
chairman, to grant planning permission, subject to:

1. The completion of section 106 obligations with the Vale and Oxfordshire County Council

2. Conditions, referenced in the officer’s report

If the required section 106 obligations are not completed in a timely manner so that planning
permission cannot be granted by the determination deadline of 20 May 2013; then it is
recommended to authorise the head of planning, in consultation with the committee chairman
and vice-chairman, to refuse planning permission.

13. 21 & 23 Eynsham Road, Botley P13/V0457/FUL
(Pages 62 - 79)

Demolition of existing dwelling and garage and erection of nine dwellings in total.
Recommendation: To authorise the head of planning, in consultation with the committee
chairman and vice chairman, to grant planning permission subject to the completion of a legal

agreement to secure financial contributions to offset the impact of the development on social
and physical infrastructure and subject to conditions referenced in the officer’s report.

14. Former orchard, land west of Manor Road, Wantage P13/V0161/0
(Pages 80 - 86)

Outline application for erection of two detached dwellings.

Recommendation: to grant planning permission, subject to conditions referenced in the
officer’s report.

Exempt information under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972

There is no exempt or confidential information at the time of agenda publication.

Vale of White Horse District Council
Planning Committee agenda - Wednesday, 8th May, 2013

Page 4



Vale of White Horse District Council

M Va’e Abbey House, Abbey Close, Abingdon, OX14 3JE
=
of White Horse

District Council

Tel: 01235 520202 Fax: 01235 532217
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

\ A34
K|d||ngto\n/
M4O

ﬁbmgdon
Farmgdon

2=

A4183T0 4 k
A34, OXFORD m
5

v
A34T O
OXFORD &
M40JC T9

GRDD

SPRIN
; A RO

V1CT0,

ABBEY MEADOW

WATER
FEATURE

-U A415 TO
&NGDON (A420) &
ANTAGE (A338)
CD - ABINGDON

COMMUNITY
HOSPITAL

OPEN AIR
SWIMMING POOL

|

FAIRACRES
RETAIL
PARK

A34TO

M4 JCT 13 A415 TO
y A4074,
READING

© www.giveway.co.uk 2008  Tel: 0800019 0027.
ou 05 data. PU100040256. Crown ©2008.

Wan!age 7

S T
Bicester /Q M1 1

"&9\ A420 /

A4074 M40

/ A34 Dldcot Wycom
A41 7 A41 EONS4 Wallingford

AGS% ‘> A417 Maldenhead Sloug
Readlng

Aylesbury \\a

Hemel ‘
Hem pstead ,,

A4010 \\A413

iy pA M25

\~

WHITE HORSE
LEISURE AND
TENNIS CENTRE

COUNCIL

ABBEY Close

Oxford and Didcot and is three miles from Abingdon town centre. For details of train times visit www.nationalrail.co.uk or call 08457 484950

By bus - there are a number of bus routes serving Abingdon town centre. For details of services and timetables, visit Oxfordshire County Council’s website at
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk. Contact details for bus operators can be found on the travel information pages on our website www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

Parking - details of car parks charges can be found on our website

By rail - the nearest main line railway stations to Abingdon are either Didcot Parkway (seven miles) or Oxford (eight miles). Radley railway station is located on the main line between

>

Q

(D

D

D

KEY: Car Parks >
[& Abbey Close g
[P) Cattle Market (D)
Charter Multi-storey <

[P] Civic
[2 Rye Farm
Hales Meadow
[P] Audlett Drive
[P] West St Helen Street




Agenda Item 3

CUMULATIVE HOUSING FIGURES
At the meeting on 7 November 2012, the planning committee requested the inclusion in
committee reports of an up date of housing figures relating to commitments (i.e.
resolutions to grant permission and permissions) for major housing schemes to address
the councils housing land shortfall. These figures do not form part of the individual
assessment of any submitted application, which need to be assessed and recommended
on the basis of each schemes specific planning merit, but they offer an indication of how
the shortfall is being addressed. Each planning permission for these schemes is granted
on the basis of a one year implementation period only, to ensure development is initiated

and so aid reducing the housing land shortfall figures. The current commitments are

shown in the table below.

Current major housing scheme resolutions and permissions

Parish Location Appn no. & date Units | Running | Status
total
Wantage Land at Broadwater, P11/V1453/0 Up to 14 | started
Manor Road Permission on 18
appeal 21.03.2012
Reserved matters
on 20.12.2012
Shrivenham | Land between Station P12/V0324/FUL 31 45 | started
Road and Townsend Resolution on
Road 20.06.2012
Permission on
23.10.2012
Marcham Anson Field, Morland P12/V0854/FUL 51 96
Road Resolution on
and Hyde Copse, Howard | 15.08.2012
Cornish Road
East Hanney | Land south of Alfreds P11/V2103/FUL 15 111
Place Resolution on
25.04.2012
Permission on
07.09.2012
East Challow | Land at Challow Works, P12/V1261/FUL 71 182
Main Road Resolution on
12.09.2012
Permission on
18.04.2013
Kingston Land south of Faringdon | P12/V1302/0 50 232
Bagpuize Road, Southmoor Resolution on
12.09.2012
Permission on
16.01.2013
P12/V1721/RM
Reserved Matters
on 24.04.2013
Watchfield Land south of Majors P12/V1329/FUL 120 352 | started
Road Resolution on
12.09.2012
Permission on
21.12.2012
Grove Land at Stockham Farm, | P12/V1240/FUL 200 552

Denchworth Road

P

Resolution on
el 52012




Ashbury Land off Walnut Trees P12/V2048 18 570
Hill Resolution on
05.12.2012
Grove Land west of Old Station | P12/V1545/0 Up to 703
Road Resolution on 133
05.12.2012
Kingston Land West of Witney P12/V1836/0 Up to 811
Bagpuize Road and South of A420 | Resolution on 108
09.01.2013
Permission on
11.04.2013
Watchfield Cowan's Camp Depot P12/V2283/0 Up to 911
High Street Resolution on 100
18.02.2013
West Hanney | Land off Rectory Farm P12/V2429/0 13 924
Close Resolution on
18.02.2013
Wantage Land East of Chain Hill P12/V2316/0 Up to 1009
Resolution on 85
12.03.2013
Steventon Land off Barnett Road P13/V0094/0 Up to 1059
Resolution on 50
12.03.2013
Shrivenham | Land east of Highworth P12/V2582/FUL 36 1095
Road Resolution on
27.03.2013
Milton Land south of Lambe P13/V0145/0 18 1113
Avenue Resolution on
24.04.2013

In addition there have been major residential planning applications submitted on the basis
of addressing the allocated housing shortfall which have been considered and found not

to be acceptable when considering their own planning merits notwithstanding the housing
shortfall situation. These applications are shown in the table below unless a resubmission
has been made for consideration by the council.

Housing proposals which have been refused / withdrawn

Parish Location Appn no Units | Running
total
Fyfield and | Sports ground and adjacentland | P12/V1125/FUL 50 50
Tubney to west of Abingdon Road, south | Withdrawn
of Kingston Bagpuize 12.09.2012
Resubmitted
East Land west of Portway Villas, P12/V1878/FUL 21 71
Hendred Reading Road Refused 05.12.2012
Abingdon Land east of Drayton Road P12/V2266/FUL 160 231
Refused 24.01.2013
At appeal
Stanford in | Land west of the A417 P12/V2075/FUL 77 308
the Vale Refused 20.12.2012
Resubmitted

Page 7




Marcham Land north of Priory Lane P12/V2447/FUL 19 327
Withdrawn
18.02.2013

Ashbury Land South of Idstone Road P13/V0016/FUL

Refused 11.04.2013

Page 8

Update 25.04.13



Agenda Item 10

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

APPLICATION NO. P12/V2653/FUL

APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION

REGISTERED 10 January 2013

PARISH KINGSTON BAGPUIZE

WARD MEMBER(S) Melinda Tilley

APPLICANT Taylor Wimpey and The Heathfield Trust

SITE Land off Draycott Road Southmoor OX13 5NG

PROPOSAL Erection of 98 dwellings with associated open
space, structural landscaping and access

AMENDMENTS 27 March 2013 & 19 April 2013

GRID REFERENCE 439812/198339

OFFICER David Rothery

—_
- O

1.2

1.3

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

INTRODUCTION

This 4.64ha site lies on the north side of the village, to the west of Draycott Road and
the south of the A420 Oxford — Swindon road. It comprises a grassed field enclosed
by hedgerows and some inter-spaced trees along the site's north, east and west
boundaries, and to the rear of residential and community buildings (village hall and
tennis courts) to the south.

Local facilities in the village comprise a primary school, a village hall, post office, shop
and public houses. The local sports ground lies south of the village, across the parish
boundary in Fyfield and Tubney parish. Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor itself has
approximately 950 households and a population of about 2,349.

A location plan is attached at appendix 1

PROPOSAL

This is a full application to consider all of the planning aspects of the proposed
development. The proposal is a major development and is contrary to the policies of the
development plan. The proposal has been publicised on this basis.

The proposal is for residential development of the site for 98 dwellings together with
roads, footpaths and associated parking areas, landscaping, amenity space, open
space and the use of some open land to the south-east of the site as an additional
recreational area for use in association with the village hall. Vehicular access is to be
taken off Draycott Road, and pedestrian access would also be available to the site from
the west, off the footpath / cycle track that allows access to the bridge over the A420.

Cumulatively, this proposal for 98 dwellings would generate an estimated population
(based upon district-wide average household figures) of 248 residents. Compared to
the approximate 950 existing households and 2,349 population in the parish, therefore
the development represents about a 10% increase in the parish. Across the 4.64ha site
the 98 dwelling units would produce a density of 21 dwellings per hectare.

Affordable housing for the proposal would amount to 39 dwellings (40%). 26.5% of the
dwellings are two bedroom properties or less.
The proposed mix of dwellings is as follows:

1-bedroom = 5 units

Page 9



2.5

2.6

2.7

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

2-bedroom = 21 units
3-bedroom = 16 units
4-bedroom = 56 units

In support of the application the following documents have been submitted:
e Planning Supporting Statement (Dec 2012 — Kemp & Kemp)
e Design and Access Statement (Aug 2012 - Savills)
e Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (Dec 2012 — edp)
¢ Findings of arboricultural assessment (Nov 2012 — edp)

The applicants have been in discussion with council officers and others to agree levels
of financial contributions towards off-site services which this proposal (through the
increase in population and the activities they generate) would add to the use of, and
securing of on-site facilities such as affordable housing. Financial contributions cover
facilities and services such as waste collection, street name plates, public art, education
(primary, secondary, sixth-form and SEN), library and museums, waste management,
social and healthcare, fire and rescue, highways and transport, police equipment, and
local recreational facilities.

Extracts from the application plans are attached at appendix 2.

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS

Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor Parish Council — Objects
A copy of the parish council's comment is attached at appendix 3.

Representations from local residents — A total of 52 representations had been
received at the time of writing this report, of which 50 object and 2 specify the need to
retain existing features. The objections made are on the following grounds:
¢ Increased traffic leading to safety issues and additional road congestion
Appearance and density are out of character with the locality
Loss of an open field
Increased pressure on local physical infrastructure
The site is subject to flooding with inadequate drainage
Cumulative impact on the village which has limited facilities
Issues of noise pollution and impact on air quality and lighting
Loss of a field used for village community amenities

Campaign for the Protection of Rural England (CPRE) — Object:

1. Over-building in the village as a whole and on this site in particular. The
proposed development is too dense. Its approval would change the character of
the village to its detriment.

2. Position of the development. The development would be in the middle of the
village, next to the village hall, a site specifically ruled out by the recent Parish
Plan.

3. Traffic problems. This further new development would generate large amounts
of extra traffic in the village which the accompanying highways adjustments
would not seem to be able to cope with, causing congestion on Draycott Road
and its junctions with other village roads, and the A415 / Faringdon Road
junction.

4. Other infrastructure problems.

5. Surveys do not show that proper attention has been paid to the provision of
appropriate water pressure, sewerage, and surface water drainage.

Page 10



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

6. The application does not seem to satisfy the provisions of the NPPF in
preserving the character of the village.

County Highways — no objection subject to suitable conditions to secure highway
improvements and contributions towards public transport provision.

Design and Conservation Officer —

The connectivity of the site would be improved if the footpath on the west side of
Draycott Road was continued in front of the village hall to link up with the footpath to
the south. The footpaths running along the west and north boundaries

of the site should be upgraded as part of the development, and the recreational
footpath to the north of the site should continue along the entire length of the
development (plot 14 would appear to prevent the two ends of the footpath linking up).

Consider providing the local area for play (LEAP) at the village hall whereit could be
used by the wider community.

The house types in general are acceptable for this location. However, the detailing on
the blank side elevation of house type E could be improved and house types 1BC and
2BC (accommodation over garages) are inappropriate for this village location. The
north boundary of the village hall site will require a well detailed brick wall and
landscaping.Details of the pumping station will need to be agreed by condition.

Landscape Architect — Acceptable layout but there are a number of issues relating to
certain plots extending into the existing row of vegetation or with buildings extending
too close to the plot boundaries. The tallest buildings are on the northern boundary of
the site, closest to the interface between the site and the open countryside to the north
of the A420. There is also no pedestrian link between the site and the village hall.

There will also be a sharp transition from the openness of the right of way beside
Worcester Place into the south-west corner of the site due the rear garden of plot 93
and the house position being adjacent to the public right of way.

Also concerned that the proximity and interface of the development on the north-
western edge of the development will create an enclosed footpath route with little visual
supervision.

The design of the new pumping station is important, as is the proposed linear open
space to the east of it. This area will need to be carefully detailed so as not to feel like
the left over space dictated by the noise levels of the A420. Currently, the western end
of the open space fizzles out into the visitor parking, pumping station and parking
associated with plots 85 and 86.

Arboriculturalist — No objection provided relevant tree protection measures are
implemented and the vegetation around the perimeter of the development is retained.

Ecologist - Holding objection as discussions relating to the grassland habitat, which is
considered to be a UK Biodiversity Action Plan Priority Habitat, are underway to
establish a suitable compensation scheme which would allow for the creation of new
priority habitats on an identified receptor site.

Natural England —The site includes a biodiversity action plan priority habitat. This
should be adequately mitigated or compensated.

Environment Agency — Standard advice offered as site lies within flood zone 1 and is

Page 11



3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

5.0

5.1

5.2

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

therefore not a high risk location.
Drainage Engineer — No objection subject to conditions on drainage and flood risk.

Thames Water — Foul water - An initial investigation has identified an inability of the
existing waste water infrastructure to accommodate the needs of this development. If
planning permission is granted, Thames Water recommends a Grampian condition is
imposed requiring a drainage strategy to be completed.

Surface water - The applicant should ensure that storm water flows are attenuated
through on-site storage. Groundwater would require a discharge permit to be arranged.

Water supply - The existing water supply infrastructure has insufficient capacity to meet
the additional demands for the proposed development. Thames Water therefore
recommends a Grampian condition be imposed requiring impact studies to be carried
out.

Environmental Health —

Air Quality Assessment - This follows sound principles and has assessed the likely
impacts of the proposed development on existing residents and also the impacts of
pollution from traffic on the A420 on the occupiers of the new development. Air quality
is not a constraint on the development.

Noise Assessment - The site is adversely affected by road noise. A scheme of sound
insulation to ensure that internal noise levels satisfy BS8233:1999 has been proposed.
Permission is recommended subject to the full implementation of the noise mitigation
scheme outlined in the report.

Housing Services — The proposal for 98 houses requires the provision of 39 affordable
houses (40%), which is prpoposed.

Policy H17 requires affordable housing to be distributed evenly across the site and to
be indistinguishable in appearance from the market housing. The current layout is
compliant with the policy.

Waste Management Team — Requires storage areas for wheeled bins per plot to be
provided with collection points clear of parking areas.

Leisure Services — Maintenance of open space areas should be clarified and secured
by adoption by the parish or through a management company.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
None

POLICY & GUIDANCE
Vale of White Horse Local Plan

Policy GS1 provides a general location strategy to concentrate development within the
five main settlements.

Policy GS2 indicates that outside the built-up areas new building will not be permitted

unless on land identified for development or the proposal is in accordance with other
specific policies.

Page 12



5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

5.18

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

Policy DC1 requires new development to be of a high design quality in terms of layout,
scale, mass, height, detailing, materials to be used, and its relationship with adjoining
buildings.

Policy DC4 requires development on sites of 0.5 ha or more to contribute to public art to
significantly contribute to the scheme or the area.

Policy DC6 requires hard and soft landscaping to protect and enhance the visual
amenities of the site and surroundings and to maximise nature conservation and wildlife
habitat creation.

Policy DC9 seeks to ensure development will not unacceptably harm the amenities of
neighbouring properties and the wider environment.

Policy NE7 requires developments within the North Vale Corallian Ridge not to harm the
landscape quality of the area unless an overriding need is identified and any impact is
minimised.

Policy H11 allows limited development of not more than 15 dwellings in settlements
such as Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor subject to design and no loss of open
space.

Policy H13 seeks to limit new housing development outside the built-up areas of
settlements.

Policy H16 requires about 50% provision of housing to be two bedrooms or less for
schemes of more than 10 dwellings and 10% should meet lifetime homes standards.

Policy H17 requires 40% provision of affordable housing for schemes of more than 5
dwellings.

Policy H23 refers to housing schemes providing open space facilities at 15% for larger
villages.

Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG)

Residential Design Guide — December 2009
Offers guidance on housing design and layout.

Sustainable Design and Construction — December 2009
Code for Sustainable Homes guidance to achieve level 3 and working to level 4 by 2013.

Open space, Sport and Recreation Future Provision — July 2008
Advice for the provision and maintenance requirements for open space areas.

Affordable Housing — July 2006
Provides further guidance in relation to policy H17.

Planning and Public Art — July 2006
Sites over 0.5 ha should provide a contribution towards public art in line with policy DCA4.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) — March 2012
Paragraphs 14 & 49 — presumption in favour of sustainable development
Paragraph 47 — five year housing supply requirement

Paragraph 50 - create sustainable inclusive and mixed communities

Page 13



6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

Paragraph 99 — flood risk assessment
Paragraph 109 — contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

National advice

At the heart of the new National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is a presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Within the context of the NPPF, planning
permission should be granted where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant
policies are out of date, unless any adverse impacts would so significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the proposed development when assessed
against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole (paragraph 14).

The current lack of a five year supply of housing sites in the district is due to the lack of
delivery of new housing by developers rather than an under-supply of allocated housing
land. This has primarily been caused by delays in progressing some major allocations
due to the economic downturn and the delay in bringing forward the council’s new local
plan. The current lack of a five year housing land supply justifies some flexibility in line
with the NPPF in the consideration of planning applications which do not accord with
local plan policy.

This approach is by necessity of a time-limited duration and is aimed at identifying sites
considered suitable to address the housing land shortfall whilst still meeting relevant
sustainability and design criteria as referred to in the NPPF. An assessment has been
made of the case put forward by the applicants that this proposal meets the
requirements of the NPPF for providing sustainable development to help address the
current housing land shortfall and, as a result, it is considered that the principle of the
proposed development is acceptable.

It is clear the application is contrary to local plan policies GS2 and H11. However,
whilst the council does not have a five year housing land supply, these policies GS2 are
inconsistent with the NPPF. The proposed development, therefore, needs to be
considered on its site specific merits and whether it constitutes a sustainable form of
development as defined in the NPPF.

The assessment of the application needs to balance the desire that the scheme should
be considered through a strategic sites allocation process against the tests set out in
the NPPF (i.e. sustainable location, appropriate design, landscape impact, drainage,
and highway safety) given the current lack of a five year housing land supply.

Use of land

Paragraph 109 of the NPPF says that “the planning system should contribute to and
enhance the natural and local environment”, and paragraph 111 says that planning
decisions “should encourage the effective use of land by re-using land that has
previously been developed (brownfield land).”

The site has been used for agricultural or similar low activity uses in the past. The
development of the site for housing is contrary to policy H10 but, as indicated above,
this is not a restricting factor given the current housing land shortfall, subject to all other
site specific matters being considered acceptable in accordance with the NPPF. The
landscape quality of the site is relatively low and so this, in itself, would not prejudice
the proposed development

The application site is relatively well visually enclosed. The site is 4.64 ha. and is
bounded to the north by the A420, to the east by Draycott Road and housing facing the

Page 14



6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

site as well as the village hall and tennis courts, on the south by housing backing on to
the site from Faringdon Road, and on the west by an open area with a footpath /
cycleway route to the bridge that crosses the A420.

The land is physically contained and whilst it may be considered to be an open amenity
feature for the village, this is not its authorised use and it is unlikely to remain in such
use for the foreseeable future given it not being in public ownership.

Sustainability credentials

The NPPF puts strong emphasis on housing being used to further enhance rural vitality.
Kingston Bagpouize is one of the larger villages within the district and scores within the
top 20 in the village hierarchy. The location of the site is on the northern fringe of the
village and within reasonably close distance to the range of services and facilities
available. For these reasons, the principle of the proposal is considered to be
acceptable in that the site is a reasonably sustainable location.

Cumulative impact considerations

This site is the fourth major development to have been the subject of an application within
the Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor parish area or an adjacent parish area seeking to
assist in addressing the identified housing land shortfall across the district. The other
schemes have considered 50 dwellings on land south of Faringdon Road, and a scheme
for up to 108 dwellings west of Witney Road both of which have been granted planning
permission, and a revised proposal still under consideration for 12 dwellings on land
adjacent to the sports ground, Abingdon Road, south of Kingston Bagpuize. There may be
further submissions on other sites, but there are no other major sites currently before the
council for consideration.

This overall level of development already committed comes to 158 dwellings, which
amounts to a 17% increase in the existing housing base in the parish. The proposed
development would increase this figure to 27% which it is considered can be
accommodated in the locality, provided suitable financial contributions are secured for on-
site and off-site services and infrastructure and a good proportion of the new development
is affordable housing. This takes into account the housing land shortfall which needs to be
addressed and the sustainability benefits of the larger villages taking a fair proportion of
new housing to help support and ensure the retention of existing services and attract new
services to the locality.

Social infrastructure

There has been some local concern that existing social and physical infrastructure
within the village could not cope with the proposed increase in population resulting from
this proposal. However, contributions can be secured to offset the impacts arising from
the development. The applicant has agreed to the principle of addressing these needs
through contributions which can be secured through a section 106 legal agreement.

Access arrangements

The site would be accessed off Draycott Road from the east. The access is shown with
acceptable vision splays. No direct vehicular access to the site would be provided from
Faringdon Road to the south of the site. Some off site highway improvement works,
however, would be required.

There is some local concern that the proposed access would cause highway
congestion due to the level of traffic already using Draycott Road from the Blandy
Avenue estate and the local primary school to the east. However, the County Engineer
has raised no highway objections on traffic generation or highway safety grounds.

Page 15



6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

Affordable housing

The affordable housing requirement has been confirmed by the applicant to be
workable as part of the scheme. The distribution of the affordable housing across the
site in accordance with council policies can be secured through the section 106
agreement.

Visual impact - appearance, landscaping, layout and scale

Good design and layout is a key aspect of sustainable development and the NPPF is
explicit in seeking high quality outcomes. The submitted proposal has been considered
in accordance with the advice in the NPPF and it is considered that this scheme is
acceptable in terms of the site specific considerations.

The layout includes a mix of detached, semi-detached and terraced dwellings and
some flats with parking below. The revised layout provides a suitable development to
complement and add to the existing stock of dwellings in the village. The proposed
layout offers external passive surveillance of the surrounding public areas, including the
northern boundary footpath which is now to be retained to offer a link into the site from
this corner of the site. The dwellings are appropriately separated from the existing
dwellings that border the site.

The detailed appearance and design of the dwellings reflect a traditional feel with solid
materials and pitched roofscape. There is a mix of dwelling types to cater for different
housing requirements, and the pallet of materials offers individuality whilst retaining
elements of a common approach throughout the proposed development. The dwelling
types providing single level accommodation over garages which were criticised by the
Councils Design and Conservation Officer are located in limited and off-street frontage
locations. These units are designed to blend in with the overall character of the rural
feel of the development and therefore do not have a harmful impact on to the area.

The proposal retains and maintains the existing field boundaries to the site with
additional landscaping provided to the boundaries with the A420 and the village hall
and tennis courts. The village hall is to be provided with an additional area of land for
amenity purposes. There is landscaping shown throughout the proposed layout and on
the open areas to be created within the northern and central parts of the development.

The proposed layout show adequate private and public outdoor space, and relates well
to the surrounding development. Privacy distances within the development and to
neighbouring properties are achieved in accordance with the Residential Design Guide.

Whilst the provision of the proposed two-and-a-half storey dwellings is an
uncharacteristic mass of building on the periphery of the development, these buildings
adjoin the northern edge of the development close to the A420 and so will assist in
defraying possible traffic noise. These properties will include appropriate noise
attenuation measures. The provision of these dwelling types as not raised concern from
the Council’s Design and Conservation Officer.

Impact on neighbours residential amenity

The proposed layout would not have any direct harmful impact on the residential
amenity of adjacent properties in terms of overshadowing, light pollution, over-
dominance or loss of privacy. The proposed arrangement would provide a generally
inward facing development, and adequate spatial separation is achieved between
properties in accordance with the Residential Design Guide.

The proposal also includes a revised footpath route at the northern section of the
development, linking Draycott Road to the western side of the site, replacing the

Page 16



6.25

6.26

6.27

6.28

6.29

6.30

6.31

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

permissive path at the northern edge of the site. There is also a need to provide a
footway outside the application site along the west side of Draycott Road to the village
hall entrance to enable safe pedestrian access. This would be subject to works within
the highway which the developer would be required to provide.

Heritage assets

The NPPF requires that account should be taken of the desirability to sustain and
enhance heritage assets. The site includes no heritage assets, although there are
listed buildings within the surrounding area. None of these are considered to rely on the
site as part of there settings. The application has not identified any heritage asset that
would be adversely affected by the proposal.

Ecological biodiversity

The submitted habitats survey has identified that the grassland which covers the
majority of the site has a relatively diverse species assemblage which would qualify it
as a UK Biodiversity Action Plan Priority Habitat. Priority Habitats have been identified
as those which are the most threatened within the UK and those which should be
protected from harm. The proposal would involve the loss of the majority of this
important habitat and this would result in a significant impact on biodiversity locally.
However, it is recognised that the current use of the site as horse pasture limits the
value of the habitat to some extent and, as a result, the loss of the grassland could be
considered acceptable provided a suitable off-site compensation package can be
agreed.

Officers, therefore, have sought to negotiate a compensation scheme which would
allow the creation and management of high quality habitats on a suitable receptor site.
The applicant is currently in discussions to identify a suitable compensation scheme,
the details of which are close to finalisation. A further update report on this matter will
be made at the meeting.

Drainage and flooding issues

Surface water drainage - The site is considered large enough to enable water storage
facilities to dispose of surface water without causing surface water run-off to the
highway or onto neighbouring properties. An attenuation scheme is shown as part of
the plans as part of the drainage solution for the site’s development.

Foul water drainage - Thames Water has identified an inability of the existing waste
water infrastructure to accommodate the needs of this proposal. A drainage strategy is
required to enable all water drainage (surface and foul) to be discharged into the public
sewerage system before any development starts on site.

Water supply - Thames Water has advised that the water supply infrastructure has
insufficient capacity to meet the additional demands of the proposed development. An
impact study of the existing water supply infrastructure is requested before any works
start on site to determine the magnitude of any additional capacity requirement in the
system. The impact study can be secured by condition.

The requirements of water supply and waste water discharge need to be addressed
before any development starts on site. The timescale for the implementation of any
favourable determination are restricted on the basis of the need to ensure the new
housing is delivered in the short term. A delay in implementing the required
improvements to the water infrastructure would indicate that there is potentially an issue
in meeting the required implementation timescales.

Page 17



6.32

7.2

7.3

7.4

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

The applicant, however, has provided a timetable to show that the drainage
requirements are technically possible and can be addressed and all other matters
pertaining to the proposed development can be submitted and agreed within the
required implementation timescale
Thames Water's timescales for the conclusion of their investigations and impact studies
based on the scale of the development are:

e a scoping report and impact study that will take two weeks to complete

o the detailed impact study (which will identify Thames Water's preferred solution)

will take up to 24 weeks to complete.

This means that the foul water issue can be resolved within the life of a one year

planning permission. The timeline will be as follows:

response to Thames Water's pre-development inquiry - 25 March 2013

Planning Committee decision on 8 May 2013

completion of Thames Water's scoping report - expected on 8 August 2013

completion of section.106 and issue of planning permission by 8 Aug 2013

(three months after the planning committee resolution)

e completion of Thames Water's impact study — expected on 9 Sept 2013 (if it
takes the full 24 weeks to complete)

e expiry date of the planning permission — 8 August 2014 (the permission will
require the approved drainage scheme to be implemented within one year of the
date of the planning decision)

On a worst case basis, this means that there would be at least 11 months in which to
obtain condition discharge prior to commencement of development and then make a
material start on site following a resolution to grant permission and the completion of
the various Thames Water studies.

CONCLUSION

This proposal does not accord with the development plan and it has been publicised as
a departure. However, in the light of the current shortfall in the council’s five year
housing land supply, the proposal’s location adjoining an existing large village with
close availability of services and facilities should be afforded appropriate weight. As the
proposal would result in a sustainable development in terms of its relationship and
proximity to local facilities and services, the principle of the proposal is considered to
accord with the NPPF.

In site specific terms, the proposal is not considered to be harmful to the landscape
character of the area, the residential amenity of nearby properties, any local heritage
assets or highway safety and, therefore, given the current housing land shortfall, it
complies with the NPPF. The proposed plans show an acceptable development on the
site.

A major issue that has arisen relates to the foul water infrastructure. The council should
not grant planning permission if that permission could not be implemented within its 12
month timescale.

The applicants have proposed a timescale to address the water infrastructure issues

and to comply with the expected planning condition and still be in a position to
implement the development within the 12 month timescale.

Page 18



7.5

8.2

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

In addition, the scheme could come on stream quickly, as all the necessary criteria are
in place for swift development on site which will assist in helping to address the current
housing land shortfall.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the decision to grant planning permission be delegated to
head of planning in consultation with the committee chairman and vice-chairman
subject to:

1. Completion within the agreed PPA period of section 106 agreements for on-
site affordable housing provision, contributions towards off-site compensation
for the creation and management of species rich grassland on a suitable receptor
site, contributions to other off-site facilities and services including highway
works, education improvements, waste management and collection, street names
signs, public art, library and museum services, social and health care, fire and
rescue, police equipment, local and area hub recreational and community facility
improvements;

2. The following conditions, including the requirement that the development be
commenced within 12 months from the date of the planning permission in order
to help address the immediate housing land shortfall:

1: Commencement within 12 months

2 : Planning condition listing the approved drawings
3 : Materials as on plan

4 : LS1 - LS2 landscaping scheme

5 : boundary landscaping with footpath to village hall
6 : Tree protection measures

7 : Boundary walls and fences

8 : Plot curtilage boundaries

9 : HY2 - Access in accordanc ewith specified plan
10 : HY12 -HY13 Roads specification

11 : HY8 - Car parking

12 : HY20 - Bicycle parking

13 : Construction traffic management plan

14 : Sustainable travel information pack (STIP)

15 : Childrens' play space

16 : Open space

17 : Bat mitigation

18 : Great crested newt mitigation

19 : Refuse bin storage

20 : Roof top aeriels

21 : Fire hydrants

22 : Flood risk details

23 : Drainage details

24 : MC22 - Contamination

If the required section 106 agreements are not completed in a timely manner and
so planning permission cannot be granted by the determination deadline of 24
May 2013, in accordance with the agreed PPA, it is recommended that authority
to refuse planning permission is delegated to the head of planning in
consultation with the chairman and vice-chairman.

Page 19



Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

Author / Officer: David Rothery - Major Applications Officer
Contact number: 01235 540349
Email address: david.rothery@southandvale.gov.uk

Page 20



e,

&
&

Piz vibsz fusm

Lond N Droneott @

. L gmsaom
A Ty R ) g ey TR

= ﬁmumu_
v

A0-X0-WIM-vOLLLL

56
-

g
64 SRR GO T NN

o |

- ey WS
Ev @ 0dELL arn
FAR Jvy ]

ny
5
% R
1gld Uogescy

uoxp
AoowyInes
pecy noaieIq e puen

Aaduaripg

JOjAE]T,

OSTLL i30URIRY

“sasoding Bonatizng ALY (9307 J0J UEUL 30 97235 10

USIERO001 Jaguny Jnan
IR LB [ W00 Wa0L] o TICH ARG S0UEIRID

O T AOPATD FILIEL S 20
Bruugyd 750 Jo 5o and 2105 41110} PIUAD OISR UL WRSPOIT)
P TSR S A T ARAMR Y11 ZLOT = B

iap

g wof wgg

k
8

&
3

T T

4
2

HEXTHA

345 NOULYOHdaY

S 'peoy NodAeld e pue]

Page 21

—10d ooz A Tld



['] TEE IR 94 1B 890 LEBRLL ]
DS GE0M YA PRIMG Si71 A0 3omg SOUSTY L SOUE OO T3ROS vHO

EC-X0-IM-FOLLLL

@Uwﬁﬂ%

1w
H1 a WS
Auaas pasodoly
[ANAN 1)

PeOY 3300ABA(] € PUE]

Aoduoaipn
- J0jAe],

N
e mopeu LS Ry 1y (0D ¥
LD W I S R W] L
et g 307 30y UEv? 3200 SjEs
ISEST00L ARy DU
m— i) umen) o E1Ep AdrG 3
Hqun uaudoERsp smu
ssodond s pnzuud ueanays pug oganpos
pAUDn AR T UNAR YD TABE
0 22dUADIY
woz Wi
b Oz
hWOF
b WG
sAaIO)

sholg Z

s I

i
Aainzs 316uig

b

/

{1t
I
i1

/ -
SIHDIFH AFHOILS - aN30T1 \ 3
e

§
| §

§

{_Ruaaing

h = o
s Y m e
e

o

=

o
P 4 . -

|

v Z R

Page 22



Bt o SRGIER T L i o

Lviql

£1 memm
=y ey

s g

e £1Re U g RS pue A
ST Jeol TSI B

L

UOK( JOCILIINGE ‘DROY TIoddeiq 18 pue]

OS2 24 Wal) main
104 €S DCTN Cld



L

7, xdy

208 B pue
FHHAREPIOY TPEOY HOBARK] I8 D

LU 2 WA A
104 =SDTN Tld




i) oy : “ubisap po|imap spsubs o] 139(Gns E\A%
r A 312 pus JANEDPUI 2B SRAD] J0OJE PRUSTUL b=
10N
T - @swmwmwoun . -g U0IEI
T e D memm §-g uomass
et = : r It 2oy
— P e s assoy ey v

“pEoy Bafmg 32 puE]
Aadmran
IOTABY,

oS 2y o i,

RPN ey

e
o T ot o s

port e

e e I

wg g

ST

h_sol

b g
U Dy e

-

el

W

g e

<l
5

I0OWYINOS "'PEOY ROJARI( J& DUBT

Page 25

Q0> U WM 21/
10 T CSOCTA T Tld

=




P12 V2653 FUL  foad, Dot

Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor ‘Parish Council

Clerk:
John Melling 17 Lime Grove
Southmoor
To: David Rothery Abingdon
Planning Department _ 0OX13 5DN
VWHDC
01865 820 867
email; johnmelling765(@btinternet.com
Tuesday, 5 February 2013
Dear Mr Rothery '

P12/V2653 — Erection of 98 residential dwellings with associated open space,
structural landscaping and access — Land off Draycott Road

The Parish Council strongly and-unahimously objects to this application for a number of
reasons as set out below, and asks that it be refused.

The cumulative impact on the village

Approval of this application would lead to a gross over-development of the village given
existing permissions for large developments totalling 113 dwellings and a 45-bed care
home. Should permission be granted, the rapid increase in population will fundamentally
affect the character of the village which has few local facilities. This will lead to
additional pressure on the local road system making the development unsustainable. This
area was specifically excluded from development in the recently produced Parish Plan
(2011) as it provides the only large open space within the village perimeter.

Traffic impact on the Draycott Road

AP
3

The additional vehicular fraffic entering the Draycott Road will lead to further congesﬁon

at the junctions with Blandy Avenue and the Faringdon Road. Together with permitted
developments elsewhere in the village the impact on the local road system especially the
mini-roundabout on the A415 / Faringdon Road (by the Hind’s Hind) and the roundabout
at the A415 / A420 junction will be severe. The Highways Officer report (15/10/2012,
prepared to assess P12/V1836/0) shows the mini-roundabout to be at “practical capacity’
using 2014 as the design year and including the additional traffic from the recently
permitted developments. c

It is essential that as part of any development on the site that the footway on the west of
the Draycott Road is extended to connect with the site entrance.

o

Page 26



Inadequate provision for water supply and sewage removal

In contrast to the claims in the submitted supporting documentation, parts of the village
experience problems with surface water and, on occasions, sewage removal. The stretch
of Draycott Road north of the junction with Blandy Avenue experiences surface water
after heavy rains and is of concern to neighbouring houscholds, as pointed out in the
objections from the site’s neighbours. Recent replacement of a short section of mains
sewer within the village required sewage from a wide area of the village to be tankered
for a period of several months.

The developer appears to be relying on Thames Water to make the necessary investment
to assure that water pressure, already low in parts of the village at times, is adequate and
sewage removed and treated. The initial site investigation by Thames Water
(28/01/2013) has ‘identified an inability of the existing waste water infrastructure to
accommodate the needs of this application’ which ‘may lead to sewage flooding’.
Thames Water (28/01/2013) has also commented that the ‘existing water supply
infrastructure has insufficient capacity to meet the additional needs of the proposed
development’.

Community involvement-

The existing level of community involvement in the proposals is far below that demanded
~ by the NPPF (p. 66). This is especially disappointing given that no opportunity has been
provided to residents to comment through a consultation on the Local Development Plan.
The document provided with the application merely lists concerns raised and the '
developer’s platitudinous answers. There has been no attempt to enquire as to resident’s
wishes regarding the nature and scale of future housing in the village, or what facilities
should be retained or developed and their appropriate location. Improved consultation
would have avoided a number of errors in the supporting documentation. There is no
longer a Doctor’s surgery or Methodist Church, RH Buses no longer exist (Transport
Statement) and the noise consultant would not have invented a District Council.
Consultation with the Parish Council has been limited to one meeting. The diversion of
the dedicated footpath and cycleway along the northern boundary has not been discussed.

Should the Planning Committee consider that the site is suitable for housing development
a number of issues must be addressed:

Broadband

The developer must ensure that all dwellings have both copper and optical fibre
connections to allow future connection to a wide range of services.

Biodiversity

The extent and position of the proposed green spaces will fail to maintain and enhance
the biodiversity of the existing grassland, being too small in area and subject to eventual

Page 27



shading from the proposed tree planting. It is unclear how the small areas proposed could
be managed by an annual, or less frequent, hay cut. As pl0 of the Extended Phase 1
Habitat Survey makes clear, most of the herbal diversity is around the edges of site where
grazing pressure is reduced. The existing edge will be reduced to a tiny length in the NW
corner of the site much reducing the floral value of the area to local residents.

The developer must ensure that a high proportion of dwellings are provided with integral
bird and bat boxes, especially for Swifts — see comments from Natural England.
Surprisingly, House Sparrows, another species which would benefit from the provmon of
~ artificial nesting sites, were not observed during the Habitat Survey though are almost
habitually present in the hedge bordering the Draycott Road.

The high density of the proposed development

It is essential that the density of development is much reduced from the proposed more
than 20 dwellings per hectare, all of either two- or two-and-a-half storeys. Such a high
density is unacceptable in a village and compares unfavourably with densities for two
permitted developments, ie P12/V1302 - South of the Farringdon Rd - 50 homes, 3.3ha =
15.1 dph and P12/V1836 - West of the Witney Rd - 63 homes, 5.09ha = 12.4 dph. An
earlier scheme for the site - Linden Homes, March 2012 - proposed only 67 dwellings
and a much larger area of usable public open space.

Insufficient green space

As a consequence of this high density, insufficient usable green space is provided. That
which is provided appears to be required as an intrinsic part of the development, eg by
buffering the sewage transfer station in the NW corner from the houses.

The lack of a buffer zone between the A420 and the houses

The effect of noise from the A420 on many future residents will be significant. People
living in a village wish to enjoy their gardens. It is therefore unacceptable for the
developer’s noise consultant to claim that satisfactory noise levels can be achieved
behind closed double-glazed windows.

The above summarises the Parish Council’s objection but it is anticipated that further
comments will be submitted when members have an opportunity to review the

submissions of other consultees, especially OOC Highways.

Yours sincerely

John Melling

Page 28



Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor Parish Council

Clerk: :
John Melling 17 Lime Grove
‘ ' Southmoor
To: David Rothery : ‘ Abingdon
Planning Department 0OX13 5DN
VWHDC
01865 820 867
email: johnmelling765@btinternet.com
B Wednesday, 6 March 2013
Dear Mr Rothery T

P12/V2653 — Erection of 98 residential dwellings with associated open space,
structural landscaping and access — Land off Draycott Road (Amendment Nol 20
~ Feb 2013) '

The Parish Council finds that the amended plans fail to address the objections set out in
my letter of 5 February 2013.

The Parish Council holds to its strong and unanimous objection to this application and
asks that it be refused. '

Yours sincerely

John Melling

Page 29



Agenda ltem 11

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

APPLICATION NO. P13/V0233/FUL

APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION

REGISTERED 6 February 2013

PARISH SUTTON COURTENAY

WARD MEMBER(S) Margaret Turner, Reg Waite, Gervase Duffield

APPLICANT Pye Homes

SITE Land to the north of 92 -112 Milton Road Sutton
Courtenay

PROPOSAL Demolition of 110 Milton Road and erection of 34
dwelling houses with associated access

AMENDMENTS None

GRID REFERENCE 449402/192956

OFFICER David Rothery

—_
— O

1.2

2.2

2.3

2.4

INTRODUCTION

This 1.67 ha site lies on the north side of Milton Road at the south-west end of Sutton
Courtenay, on the boundary with Milton parish and to the rear of the road frontage
properties. It comprises a grassed field enclosed by hedgerows and some inter-
spaced trees along the north, east and west boundaries. The south boundary adjoins
the rear gardens of residential properties fronting Milton Road. Access is proposed
from Milton Road by the removal of no. 110 Milton Road and the creation of a new
access road. Overhead electricity lines cross the south and west corner of the site.

Local facilities in the village are focused at the northern end and comprise a primary
school, a village hall, post office, local shop, and public houses. The local sports
ground lies to the east of the central area of the village off Old Wallingford Way, and
there are other recreational and fitness facilities at Milton Park to the south. Sutton
Courtenay parish itself has approximately 1,007 households and an estimated
population of 2,421 residents.

A location plan is attached at appendix 1

PROPOSAL

This is a full application to consider all the planning aspects of the proposed
development. The proposal is a major development and is contrary to the policies of the
development plan. The proposal has been publicised on this basis.

The proposal is for the residential development of the site with 34 dwellings (following
the demolition of the existing property for the new access road) together with roads,
footpaths and associated parking areas, landscaping, amenity space, and open space.

This proposal for 34 dwellings would result in an estimated additional 83 residents
(based upon district-wide average household figures), which represents about a 3%
increase in the parish population. Across the 1.67 ha site the 34 dwellings would result
in a density of 20 dwellings per hectare.

Affordable housing is proposed at 40% (i.e. 13 dwellings). 26.5% of the dwellings are
two-bedroom properties or less.
The proposed mix of dwelling units is as follows:

1-bedroom = 0 units

2-bedroom = 13 units of which 9 are shown as affordable properties

Page 30



2.5

2.6

2.7

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

3-bedroom
4-bedroom

8 units of which 4 are shown as affordable properties
13 units

The following documents have been submitted in support of the application:
Planning Statement & Design and Access Statement (Feb 2013 - WWADP)
Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (Jan 2013 — Lockhart Garratt)
Green Infrastructure Supporting Statement (Jan 2013 — Lockhart Garratt)
Arboricultural Report (Jan 2013 — Lockhart Garratt)

Ecological Report (Jan 2013 — Aae)

Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Statement (Dec 2012 — ICS)
Supplementary Hydrological Groundwater Impact Assessment (Mar 2013 — ICS)
Cultural Heritage Assessment (Jan 2013 — Oxford Archaeology)

Transport Statement (Feb 2013 — David Tucker Associates)

Sustainable Design checklist (Jan 2013 — Blewburton)

Code for Sustainable Homes pre-assessment (Jan 2013 — Breglobal)
Renewable Energy Options Appraisal (Jan 2013 — Blewburton)

Statement of Community Engagement (Jan 2013 — Meeting Place )

The applicants have been in discussion with council officers and others to agree levels
of financial contribution towards off-site services which this proposal (through the
increase in population and the activities they generate) would add to the use of, and
securing on-site facilities such as affordable housing. Financial contributions cover
facilities and services such as waste collection, street name plates, public art, education
(primary, secondary, sixth-form and SEN), library and museums, waste management,
social and healthcare, fire and rescue, highways and transport, police equipment, and
local recreational facilities.

Extracts from the application plans are attached at appendix 2.

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS

Sutton Courtenay Parish Council — Object
A copy of the parish council’s comments is attached at appendix 3A.

Milton Parish Council — Object:

“Milton Parish Council considers that this application should be refused. Milton village
currently suffers from the inadequate road infrastructure associated with Milton Park
and the A34 interchange and any additional car movements can only add to the
problems. Milton Parish Council is also concerned about the flood risk posed by further
housing. Ginge Brook is currently unable to cope with water levels — frequently flooding
and indeed closing Footpath 5. Any disturbance of the water table will surely make
things worse.”

Drayton Parish Council — Object
A copy of the parish council’s comments is attached at appendix 3B.

Local residents — A total of 109 representations had been received from local
residents at the time of writing this report, all of which object. The objections are made
on the following grounds:

¢ Increased traffic leading to safety issues and additional road congestion

e The site is subject to flooding with inadequate drainage
¢ Increased pressure on local infrastructure

Page 31



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

Erosion of the village’s rural character

Cumulative impact on the village which has limited facilities
Issues of noise pollution and impact on air quality and lighting
Loss of an open field which is a habitat for wildlife

Keep Sutton Courtenay Rural — Object

The group has submitted its objections in the form of a report against this proposal and
a proposal on adjoining land (application reference no. P13/V0401/O). In addition the
group has commissioned and submitted two reports dealing with the application’s
transport assessment and flood risk assessment as follows:

Review of Transport Assessments (March 2013 — Capita Symonds)
Sutton Courtenay FRA Evaluation (February 2013 — Hydro-GIS Ltd)

Both of these reports have been sent to the consultees who advise the council on these
matters.

Campaign for the Protection of Rural England (CPRE) — Object

“CPRE Oxfordshire objects to this application on the grounds that it would lead

to unsustainable development of the village of Sutton Courtenay. Sutton Courtenay is a
pretty riverside village with a strong sense of community. However, rapid and significant
expansion of the village threatens to overwhelm local services and facilities, and puts at
risk its current green setting. CPRE notes that applications for 160+ houses have
already been approved within the village. Further development within this short time
period will not be sustainable.

In particular, our concerns are:

1. The density of the proposed development is too great. For example, it will lead to
cars from the new development right next to gardens of existing houses.

2. Traffic problems will be created, in particular at key 'narrowings' which are already
bad such as Culham Bridge, Milton Heights, Harwell Road.

3. Surface water flooding is already a problem and additional hard surfacing will
exacerbate this.

4. Appropriate infrastructure for sewage is not in place.

In addition we note that both this and the current application for further housing at a
different point on Milton Road will swallow up some of the remaining green land around
the village. If housing is required, the imminent potential of brown field land becoming
available at the Didcot A site would be an alternative option which should be
considered in the first instance.”

County Highways — No objection subject to suitable conditions to secure highway
improvements and contributions towards public transport provision.

Landscape Architect — “This site is particularly visible when travelling from Milton to
Sutton Courtenay along the Milton Road and when using the public footpath adjacent to
the site. The existing hedge and boundary trees help screen the site and should be
retained and enhanced. In the Green Infrastructure Statement, ref: 12-2247

3607 D04 page 16, 5.1.7, it states that the hedge will be buffered from the development
by a maintenance corridor, which will allow consistent management throughout. Details
of this maintenance corridor will be needed.

Details of proposed fences, garden walls and enclosures within the development

should be required. It is not clear what the design is between the existing industrial
units in the south-west corner of the site and the housing development. Maybe this car

Page 32



3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

park should be screened off from the housing?

To create an avenue into the development more trees would be required on each side
of the entrance road, possibly another four birch trees. There seems to be more
opportunities to plant trees within the development site, as indicated in the Proposed
Site Plan drawing no. P01 rev. H. It would be good to have more street trees so long as
there is no conflict with services and lighting.”

Arboriculturalist — No objection provided tree protection measures are implemented
and the vegetation around the perimeter of the site is retained.

Ecologist - No objection provided the recommendations of the ecological report are
followed. There are no significant ecological constraints on this site.

Natural England — Standard advice offered. The proposal does not appear to affect
any statutorily protected sites or landscapes.

Environment Agency — Standard advice offered as the site lies within flood zone 1
and, therefore, it is not a high risk location. Standard advice on surface water flooding
has been provided and this can be incorporated into a planning condition.

Drainage Engineer — Holding objection on drainage and flood risk grounds pending
further information.

There are concerns on the effectiveness of the proposed drainage strategy with the
high ground water table. Further information is requested to demonstrate that the
proposed development can be effectively drained and will not be prone to flood risk.

Regarding the report submitted by Keep Sutton Courtenay Rural, the surface water and
groundwater situation has been responded to by the Environment Agency who has
raised no objection from a groundwater protection perspective.

Thames Water — An initial investigation has identified an inability of the existing waste
water infrastructure to accommodate the needs of this development. If planning
permission is granted, Thames Water recommends a 'Grampian' condition is imposed
requiring a drainage strategy to be completed.

Regarding the report submitted by Keep Sutton Courtenay Rural, Thames Water
indicates that at this stage their comments remain the same. They are aware of
capacity concerns for this development and have requested that the developer
discusses mitigation measures with them in accordance with the recommended
planning condition.

Environmental Health — No objection

Air quality - The area has not been identified as an area of poor air quality and the
proposed development will be unlikely to result in a significant impact on local air
quality.

Design and Conservation Officer — There are no known heritage assets on the site
that will be affected by the development. The site is visually well contained by existing
development and landscaping features which are to be retained and will enhance the
development. The design of the proposed housing is appropriate to the location. The
sustainability of the site would be improved if there was a more direct pedestrian route
from the site into the village.

Page 33



3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

4.2

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

County Archaeologist — The site is within an area of archaeological potential. As
such, an archaeological desk-based assessment has been carried out. However, a pre-
determination archaeological field evaluation should also be undertaken. A written
scheme of investigation has been approved and the field evaluation will be undertaken
shortly.

English Heritage — Has considered the information submitted and does not wish to
offer any comments on this occasion. The application should be determined in
accordance with national and local policy guidance, and on the basis of the council’s
specialist conservation advice.

Housing Services — The proposal to deliver 34 houses following the demolition of one
existing dwelling would result in a gain of 33 dwellings. 40% provision of affordable
housing would require 13 dwellings, which is proposed.

Policy H17 requires affordable housing to be distributed evenly across the site and to
be indistinguishable in appearance from the market housing. The proposed distribution
is not policy compliant.

Equalities Officer — Requires storage areas for wheeled bins so that they are not left
on the pavement to cause obstruction to pedestrians and wheelchair users. A
contribution towards the shopmobility scheme in Abingdon would be requested.

Waste Management Team — Requires storage areas for wheeled bins per plot to be
provided with collection points clear of parking areas.

Lesiure Services — Maintenance of open space areas should be clarified and secured
either by adoption by the parish council or through a management company.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
P00/V1120 - Refused (24/08/2000) - Dismissed on appeal (31/01/2001)
Demolition of bungalow. Erection of four bungalows served by access way.

P13/V0401/0O — Pending determination.

Demolition of no. 44 Milton Road to create access, residential development of site for
up to 70 dwellings, including vehicular access, pedestrian and cycle links, public open
space, landscaping and drainage.

POLICY & GUIDANCE

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011

Policy GS1 provides a general location strategy to concentrate development within the
five main settlements.

Policy GS2 indicates that outside the built-up areas new building will not be permitted
unless on land identified for development or the proposal is in accordance with other
specific policies.

Policy DC1 requires new development to be of a high design quality in terms of layout,
scale, mass, height, detailing, materials to be used, and its relationship with adjoining
buildings.

Policy DC4 requires development on sites of 0.5 ha or more to contribute to public art to
significantly contribute to the development or the local area.

Page 34



Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

5.5 Policy DC6 requires hard and soft landscaping to protect and enhance the visual
amenities of the site and surroundings and to maximise nature conservation and wildlife
habitat creation.

5.6  Policy DC9 seeks to ensure development will not unacceptably harm the amenities of
neighbouring properties or the wider environment.

5.7  Policy NE9 says that development in the Lowland Vale will not be permitted if it would
have an adverse effect on the landscape, particularly on the long and open views within
or across the area.

5.8 Policy NE10 says that development which would harm the essentially open or rural
character of areas on the urban fringes and in the important gaps between settlements
will not be permitted.

5.9 Policy NE11 seeks to enhance the landscape character of areas which have been
damaged or compromised.

5.10 Policy H11 allows limited development of not more than 15 dwellings within villages
such as Sutton Courtenay subject to design issues and not losing open space.

5.11 Policy H13 seeks to limit new housing development outside the built-up areas of
settlements.

5.12 Policy H16 requires about 50% provision of housing to be two-bedroom or less for
schemes of more than 10 dwellings and 10% should meet lifetime homes standards.

5.13 Policy H17 requires 40% provision of affordable housing for schemes of more than 5
dwellings.

5.14 Policy H23 refers to housing schemes providing open space at 15% for the larger
villages.

Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG)

5.15 Residential Design Guide — December 2009
Offers guidance on housing design and layout.

5.16 Sustainable Design and Construction — December 2009
Code for Sustainable Homes guidance to achieve level 3 and working to level 4 by 2013.

5.17 Open space, Sport and Recreation Future Provision — July 2008
Advice for the provision and maintenance requirements for open space areas.

5.18 Affordable Housing — July 2006
Provides further guidance in relation to policy H17.

5.19 Planning and Public Art — July 2006
Sites over 0.5 ha should provide a contribution towards public art in line with policy DCA4.

5.20 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) — March 2012
Paragraph 14 & 49 — presumption in favour of sustainable development
Paragraph 47 — five year housing supply requirement
Paragraph 50 - create sustainable inclusive and mixed communities

Page 35



6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

Paragraph 99 — flood risk assessment
Paragraph 109 — contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

National advice

At the heart of the new National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is a presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Within the context of the NPPF, planning
permission should be granted where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant
policies are out of date, unless any adverse impacts would so significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the proposed development when assessed
against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole (paragraph14).

The current lack of a five year supply of housing sites in the district is due to the lack of
delivery of new housing by developers rather than an under-supply of allocated housing
land. This has primarily been caused by delays in progressing some major allocations
due to the economic downturn and the delay in bringing forward the council’s new local
plan. The current lack of a five year housing land supply justifies some flexibility in line
with the NPPF in the consideration of planning applications which do not accord with
local plan policy.

This approach is by necessity of a time-limited duration and is aimed at identifying sites
considered suitable to address the housing land shortfall whilst still meeting relevant
sustainability and design criteria as referred to in the NPPF. An assessment has been
made of the case put forward by the applicants that this proposal meets the
requirements of the NPPF for providing sustainable development to help address the
current housing land shortfall and, as a result, it is considered that the principle of the
proposed development is acceptable.

It is clear the application is contrary to local plan policies GS2 and H11. However,
whilst the council does not have a five year housing land supply, these policies are
inconsistent with the NPPF. The proposed development, therefore, needs to be
considered on its site specific merits and whether it constitutes a sustainable form of
development as defined in the NPPF.

Use of land

Paragraph109 of the NPPF says that “the planning system should contribute to and
enhance the natural and local environment”, and paragraph111 says that planning
decisions “should encourage the effective use of land by re-using land that has
previously been developed (brownfield land).”

The site has been used for agricultural or similar low activity uses in the past. The
development of the site for housing is contrary to policy H11 but, as indicated above,
this is not a restricting factor given the current housing land shortfall, subject to all other
site specific matters being considered acceptable in accordance with the NPPF. The
landscape quality of the site is relatively low and so this, in itself, would not prejudice
the proposed development

Sustainability credentials

The NPPF puts strong emphasis on housing being used to further enhance rural
vitality. Sutton Courtenay is one of the larger villages within the district and scores within
the top 20 in the village hierarchy. The location of the site is on the fringe of the
southern part of the village, but it is reasonably close to the range of services and
facilities available within the village. For these reasons, the principle of the proposal is
considered to be acceptable in that the site is a reasonably sustainable location.

Page 36



6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

Cumulative impact considerations

This is the first major proposed housing development within the parish area or an adjacent
parish area seeking to assist in addressing the identified housing land shortfall across the
district. There is another proposal still pending consideration on land adjacent to this site
for up to 70 dwellings, also accessed from Milton Road. Other locations may result in
future applications, but there are no other large sites currently before the council for
consideration.

The proposal would result in an increase of about 3% in the existing parish housing stock
with a commensurate increase in population within the ward of about 3.5%. The overall
level of proposed cumulative development could result in an additional 104 dwellings, on
the basis of existing applications (including P13/V0401/0 the neighbouring site as yet to
be considered). This amounts to an 11% increase in the existing housing stock in the
parish..

The proposed development is considered to be capable of being accommodated in the
locality, provided suitable contributions are secured to on-site and off-site services and
infrastructure. This takes into account the housing land shortfall which needs to be
addressed and the sustainability benefit of the larger settlements taking a fair proportion of
the required additional housing to support and ensure the retention of existing services.

Social infrastructure

There has been some local concern that existing social and physical infrastructure
within the village could not cope with the proposed increase in population resulting from
this proposal. However, contributions can be secured to offset the impacts arising from
the development. The applicant has agreed to the principle of addressing these needs
through contributions which can be secured through a section 106 legal agreement.

Access arrangements

The site would be accessed off Milton Road from the south. The access is shown with
acceptable vision splays following the receipt of amended plans to address original
concerns. Some off-site highway improvements would also be required and could be
secured through legal agreements.

Some local concern has been expressed that the proposed access would cause traffic
congestion due to the level of traffic using the road from Milton village to the west.
However, there are no objections from the County Engineer on traffic generation or
highway safety grounds. This takes into account the additional transport assessment
report submitted by the Keep Sutton Courtenay Rural residents’ group (KSCR).

Affordable housing

The affordable housing requirement has been confirmed by the applicant to be
workable as part of the scheme. The distribution of the affordable housing across the
site is clustered in one area. This is the preference of the registered social landlord
provider who is interested in this element of the scheme. Given the small size of the
site, this small clustering is not considered to be overly detrimental to the layout or
social integration.

Visual impact - appearance, landscaping, layout and scale

Good design and layout is a key aspect of sustainable development and the NPPF is
explicit in seeking high quality outcomes. The submitted proposal has been considered
in accordance with the advice in the NPPF and it is viewed that the scheme is
acceptable in terms of the site specific considerations.

The layout has a mix of detached, semi-detached and terraced dwellings which

Page 37



6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

provides a suitable development to complement and add to the existing mix of
dwellings in the village. The proposed provision of two storey dwellings is considered
acceptable on the periphery of the village layout and can reflects the character of other
parts of the exisitng village environment.

The detailed appearance and design of the dwellings reflect a traditional feel with solid
materials and a pitched roofscape. There is a mix of dwelling types to cater for different
housing requirements, and the pallet of materials offers individuality whilst retaining
elements of a common approach throughout the proposed development.

The proposed dwellings offer passive surveillance of the surrounding public areas and
are appropriately separated from the existing dwellings that border the site.

Adequate private garden space is provided and the proposed layout relates well to the
surrounding development in the area. Privacy distances within the development and to
neighbouring properties are achieved in accordance with the Residential Design Guide.

The proposal retains and maintains the existing field boundaries to the site with
additional landscaping provided throughout the proposed layout.

Impact on the residential amenity of neighbours

The proposed layout would not have any direct harmful impact on the residential
amenity of adjacent properties in terms of overshadowing, light pollution, over-
dominance or loss of privacy. The proposed arrangement would provide a generally
inward facing development, and adequate spatial separation is achieved between
properties in accordance with the Residential Design Guide.

Heritage assets

The NPPF requires that account should be taken of the desirability to sustain and
enhance heritage assets. The proposal has no heritage assets within the site or within
the surrounding area. The application has not identified any heritage asset in the local
area that would be subject to any adverse impact from the proposal.

Drainage and flooding issues

Surface water drainage — The site is subject to a high water table which requires further
assessment by way of a hydrological groundwater impact assessment. Work on this is
currently under discussion with Thames Water. An update on this matter will be given
at the meeting.

Foul water drainage — Thames Water has identified an inability of the existing waste
water infrastructure to accommodate the needs of this proposal. A drainage strategy is
required to enable all water drainage (surface and foul) to be discharged into the public
sewerage system before any development starts on site.

There is uncertainty about whether the necessary works to provide a drainage strategy
can be completed within the life of a 12 month planning permission. Clarification of this
matter is awaited from Thames Water, and an update will be given at the meeting.

CONCLUSION

This outline proposal does not accord with the development plan and it has been
publicised as a departure. However, in the light of the current shortfall in the council’s
five year housing land supply, the proposal’s location adjoining an existing large village
with close availability of services and facilities should be afforded appropriate weight.
As the proposal would result in a sustainable development in terms of its relationship

Page 38



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

8.0

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

and proximity to local facilities and services, the principle of the proposal is considered
to accord with the NPPF.

In site specific terms, the proposal is not considered to be harmful to the landscape
character of the area, the residential amenity of nearby properties, any local heritage
assets or highway safety and, therefore, given the current housing land shortfall, it
complies with the NPPF. The proposed plans show an acceptable development on the
site.

A major issue that has arisen relates to the foul water infrastructure. The council should
not grant planning permission if that permission could not be implemented within its 12
month timescale.

The applicants have confirmed they are actively investigating appropriate measures to
address the surface water and foul water drainage issues with Thames Water. This
investigation is ongoing at the time of writing this report but it is expected to be finalised
within the next few days. If satisfactorily resolved, the issues can be properly addressed
by imposing conditions on the permission.

In addition, the scheme could come on stream quickly, as all the necessary criteria are
in place for swift development on site which will assist in helping to address the current
housing land shortfall.

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the decision to grant planning permission be delegated to
head of planning in consultation with the committee chairman subject to:

1. Completion within a months period of a drainage strategy to address the water
infrastructure issues relating to the site, together with a clear and quantified
timescale for the implementation of any works required under the drainage
strategy in agreement with Thames Water to ensure that all such works are
completed prior to the commencement of development on the site within the 12
month period.

2. Completion within the agreed PPA period of section 106 agreements for on-
site affordable housing provision, contributions towards off-site facilities and
services including highways works, education improvements, waste
management and collection, street names signs, public art, library and museum
service, social and health care, fire and rescue, police equipment, local and area
hub recreational and community facility improvements.

3. The following conditions, including the requirement for the commencement of
development within 12 months from the date of the issue of planning permission
to help address the immediate housing land shortfall:

TL1 - Time limit (12 months)

MC2 - materials

LS1 - landscape

LS4 - tree protection details

REG6 - boundary walls and fences - including walls to open frontages
Plot curtilage boundaries

Plot restriction to southern boundary

Ecology

MC24 - drainage requirements

©CoNoO LN~

Page 39



Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

10. Drainage timetable to be implemented
11. Construction traffic management plan
12. Travel information packs

13. Access visibility

14. Parking provision

15. Building height parameters

16. Refuse bin storage

17. Roof top aeriels

18. Maintenance of open space areas

19. Protect and maintain hedges during development operations
20. Approved drawings

If the required section 106 agreements are not completed in a timely manner and
so planning permission cannot be granted by the determination deadline of 19
June 2013, in accordance with the agreed PPA, it is recommended that authority
to refuse planning permission is delegated to the head of planning in
consultation with the chairman and vice-chairman.

Author / Officer: David Rothery - Major Applications Officer
Contact number: 01235 540349
Email address: david.rothery@southandvale.gov.uk

Page 40



T

Ee— _-al_azmga— sk ﬂ%—

T

iﬁiamwa

£

EV@®0GalL ]

2108 980 e
 davAppemisem
103 HOHY

NMOL ON!

ue|d usHEIoT

Aeuapnog uopnsg
PEOY uon
juswidojasaq ERuspIsay

PI5VO2Z3F0L

MILTON RoAD
(@* APPX 1

=i

ﬁﬂ

[L2ZZ 25N XN S
NV1d NOILYOO1 31IS

86610001 U 80UadN “pantesal SBU §iy WBUAdS umoIDg

A

y. I |
b |




AFPR 2.1

MILTON ROAD

PI3Vo22B 0L

-3 R g

d

‘on B

| w

#0g

E—

8 ™[ wrd wea T
LY&00G L =
2108 Joquieoad = il

=

davAppemisem |

B osuIweeeTs sedy ORY RIEIeiRY

z5100 ﬁ_ : 3 H

SO-BEEYE DN ONY 0Dy

S3IWICESY BTHOr QWD
I3 SHHOM S500Y ANS Ty
AT NSN30 STV B0

wos

29 )
Seiees (e FL

FRG LA TR oGy
NG UafaH 1S Bl o
SO O

ueld apg pasodoid

sawoH 2id 10]
Aeusunog uopng ‘peoy Lo A
1usuwdo@nag [euapisay

o) ]E EuEen| T B
paynue

eureys sbeueip ‘pajsnlpe
Armenup episBucpe iged

- Bugesw ST SiaLpUSLILY

_w.,m_ : siNvr+

f s g0 gptetne
W oo alard B

—

ﬁﬁ_nvww. -
830 L T
ot Legels Suiturd

b5 0

peonpad sBuEmp 10 1squny
“pajRaGiaL uonS Burdiund
N ssausng Gugspte

c} pepind Buniey

srs SHNYT P

A D)

rage 42z

Sydy aan
atcd o) paleadol
uonas Budung

5re EUNYI 6

pasEaIIu § pUe L siod
usamaq uoreedas

pue paseasauy

uones Surdund jo sz1g
m_;w_ CHNVE B
LOJIRYNSU0S

PUE LORITE|XE dljgacd
Eumoo; palsnipe
Bupped pue moebung
< pabiueys oE 10id
SLEYT 1T

Dia

Srs

‘pastnal

S5 UoNets Buiduind
‘peay Bujwn of Jusoelpe
PP tus §0uSs “pappe
suap.eb Jeal o) SLpedioo-

s ELNVCEZ

SOHAA yum (el el =
Gugoalu S8 -1 102 p-1. s R . RECHOO NG N,
sj04d 01 pepusixs suspRes ISNOY S[TEpIa)e/anEs pajU ta ~
_ ma_ eLfvrez | 9 {ees) £l = seSToy pag gou EIaL comenon
‘SIISP §83572 A1 IURYNSUDH : TN
sheanyBll| o] aoUeds]) pue N TRy
‘82 PUB 8E '/ ‘€L ‘gL siaid oy : .
SUBIED 0 SUBUDULY diysiBums parEys - BUSIOH SRRy
Srs SENYTSE | H 8001 Mopbung & [
£101 €

EFB c

1582- BUSMOM SKERDYY

@ @
wLam
LR N ]

Py
ponour oq s seen Bumod Sy
Jpabiewrsp § paseogp Bugeps N

uaeuroyl o @sig

Ay ) e ) Bura 11517509 2 AV RIERIATAL A2
“sogad ol eabkl
raﬁzw?._éeunm.ussﬂ.m_fng!r

oy ng e s e wap K

FaL, pasosiarg @

(5413

siel
s g oo o mgn e o LS A st

sy Buisicy @

M0 20p3; s

N, o
o NN N om ™
«cmBoaow

ot 1Ay Euiupid 3A3HMOT pASDADIL g
ot 0 Uy s mod g Yo RS 9 15T ubs spag 'ON .
A S " IERBISIN 2B 0 AU SASAEKL & 0| PUE B55L .
oy e e o IRy o 3 £ ow S o
T AP 63 Ko LRGBS OSSR A0 S

. g B

OU) L Frxmntt DR =IO B, || UOEEihy .
o e ol St S .

Haaa 3%—:.”83 E__ME.__E gﬂdﬁﬂﬂlamrg! -&mﬁﬂm_ _MW— .

o At e g AOPTIA e 1 AP R808 90 ) Lk Bt .

§

o~




612 0 30 %0a

_ _ v0d _ z5Le
oy ot bwa aor,

= _ Sr s
@O0 LY@0S | 7=
£L07 Aener =

davAPPEMISOM

SEINNY TS MIAOL ONY SLOTLIHDHY
T A g s e S
299125 (SE2 1) Xey

BELEEE (FET10) 1L

35 $IXQ "auiepinpeg “uopley
PG WPH 1S e g

ESnOjEp UL

7€ E L SI0ld
suonEndld SpIS § o4
1 3% 49V sedAL ssnoy

SaUIoH afd 104
ABUDLINDZ UOHNS PEGY VO
wewdoeasq [EAUAPISAY

[psus] s ] awaf 3

PI12 VO2RKI FUL. MILTON ReaD
APPR 2B

uoijeAs|d opIS
¥ 10id]

v ‘cC ‘Il S101d
192 9V SAdAL ISNOH

uoeAS|S oIS
| 10id |

g 90A]

RN R

g adAl

g€ 10id

loll o - 'S

KRNI

4.1
=

(a8
UuolleAs|g Uol

¢ 10ld 4 I 10ld _

N

TSR R ) BRI SRR A
PR St e ey S 0 PEHIGIR £ 5 BTG

cav-Anpes 1o
smn e s i
W £ 00010 BuRAE 0] S53L0 S ARWRIR LI 809150 51

_soumo 1 Budasy
4140 LORFIMEY uoiond oy oyl nedes o6l 1s0u
Kb fau, ity and o AJUS SEEGATKI SU) J5) EVS S8EL
oy 5. reniatrvd
iy RGeS . HEK 3 sy

ke, upgeu|ddvy BURNSLS

#1110 paeEns A yides awnl
1| FUEIR NG A2 puE

= 31 Lojreie) tn Uapasten) 39
e S g in: ool

pvginled- Aty S

TR U < AR T 10 BRGS0 51 Bl S

_ﬁ

I

v odA|

vedhp - T geddl [

i

[Tt

i

M AT




PIRVO2ZZEUL.  MILTON ROAD

APPY 20

& 2 494 200

_\ .a.__ —E%a_ Nmﬁ_
RS s.g .
T O 3dA1L ASNOH
dOYADPRMISESM

91 pue ¢ 10id

91 Pue p| S10ld
uoleas|3 Jeay

SUORRAT - O adA] asnoy

SaWoH ald 0L

Aezuaunen uolng ‘peEoy UGN
wsuidojerag Enuemsay

P

eag] seg

uoieAs|3 opis

9L pue | S10|d
uoljeAs|3g juol4

o) Lo

PEASoSa o 11w AINER4 O ZRrE 1 4] PP sty

A UG O PR SO d

PR SRR e 2 gt LD ABELE 8 O) SUCRIRONT

ST Tk
PRRD NP 3 FTES W S S I 1€ S Ny

_ Pagé 44

Y m L m |




MILTON RoOAD

Arpx 2D

P13 ORBR |

642 0 Pt

Lol ] = apuey (obeseb yum} gL pue || ‘6 ‘G S10 .
s = pap- = Y S1PUE L6 S SOl (PopUBY G PUE || ‘6 ‘G S10Id)
Svamrt wersl (penop umoys) abereb yum g ‘g ‘9 siold 1 PUE D1 ‘G ‘9 S101d

SHENNYID MIODL ONY SLO3LIHOYY
AT T RAEGE AT SRS RS

= 208128 ISEELD) R
BELEES (9s2L0l 121

S5 PIXQ iuspipG “uoplgy
RIS LB 1 188 O
ESnaUgR UL

L1 PUB SL°LIDL'6'89°S S101d
suoneasa|y - q adA)] asnay

SaoH 244 1o}
ABUSLINDD LORNS ‘DPEOY U0
juowdojanag jenuapisay

= T T ]

usEIG s

53y st 3015 0 e

RRIiEaTS 90 0 AIIKRL O “SFILYE pahd 44, DS DR O ULIIRE
EBAE 430 WBLRE 30, AL BUNEXS S16 10 AREIIE DR

i
¢

E.
JavAppon o
E..ﬂniaﬂuzn..{ysﬁﬁns!uézi;u;

socm
2 e ) U peaten oy 1oy SENR N R
#da o1 Aauary Evmail Su 101 Sovpetsd U5 1oRI0

2 ta pesrEur A Faden w0

i i TR ot Do et o
WU AT AT ACH § APEERR 5 10 BT a3 Pl

SLEUE [LOLE9'YS

s1md uoy aBriel payoEE -

10 UGad 40 BURNO

N

/ﬁ%\

(pspuey G pue L| ‘6 ‘G siold )
1) PUe 0| ‘g ‘9 $10|d
uoneAs|q epIs

mmang ou 01 poyodar sty fm |
a

“nn

1

(pepuey G| PUE || ‘6 ‘G S10/d )

L1 pue gl ‘g ‘9 sioid
UONBAS|T U0

Page 45




Sutton Courtenay

Clerle Mrs. L. A, Martin B.A.

Telephone/Fax: Frilford Heath
(01865 391833)

PIdVoz=30 )1

Parish Council fHl-ren =eas

AFPx 3A

Orchard House,

90 Howard Cotnish Road,
Marcham, Abingdon,
Oxfordshire OX13 6PU

Email: info@suttoncourtenay-pe.gov.uk

Mr. D. Rothery,

Development Control,

Vale of White Horse District Council,

Abbey House,

Abingdon,

Oxon.

0X14 3JE A 28th March, 2013

Dear Mr. Rothery,

P13/V0233 Demolition of 110 Milton Road and erection of 34 dwellings
Land north of 92-112 Milton Road
For: J.A. Pye

The Parish Council objects to the application on the following grounds:

1. At a meeting of the Vale of White Horse District Council held on 20th February, 2013, the
Parish Council presented a land use survey of the parish. Over 60% of the land in the parish
was in use for commercial/industrial/mineral and waste operations. Only 19% of land
remained for agricultural use. The parish is being squeezed by uses that are harmful to both
the health and well being of the communify. During the Council’s strategic housing land
availability assessment last year, the Vale of White Horse District Council, through a written
reply from Cllr. Cox, to a question on housing allocations to 2025 specifically gave firm
assurances that the village would not have to accept further land allocations for housing
beyond existing commitments. Those commitments are 140 houses at the Amey site in
Appleford Road, and 15 houses on the Catholic Church site in Hobbyhorse Lane. These more
than meet the housing requirements for Sutton Courtenay. The village has had more than its
fair share of development commitments.

In response to the presentation to the Vale of White Horse District Council on 20th February,
Cllr. Cox gave cause for hope in his response letter, Cllr. Cox accepted the obligation to fully
recognise the need to retain the identity and character of Sutton Courtenay from unacceptable
and harmful development. Previously, when several sites within the parish were considered as
part of the screening options, it was concluded that there was no need for further development.
The development is outside of the existing developed footprint of the village and therefore
beyond its boundary. The plan shown to the Vale of White Horse District Council on 20th
February showed just 19% agricultural land remaining in what is a rural parish. The proposal
represents an incursion into the remaining available agricultural land.

2. The entrance/exit into Milton Road is at an unacceptably dangerous point. There is a bend
and downward slope in the road which reduces adequate visibility. Good visibility of the
proposed new junction is difficult to achieve. No vehicle speed statistics appear to be lodged
with the application, yet it is well known locally that the 85 percentile figure is well in excess
of the permitted 30 mph at this point.

Page 46



3. The Parish Council believes the statistics given regarding traffic flows are not accurate. At
the time the traffic counter was installed in December 2012 Southern Gas Networks were
replacing gas pipes in the village. The roads affected were Church Street, High Street,
Frilsham Street, Harwell Road and Milton Road. There have been reduced traffic flows in the
village for a considerable number of weeks. Drivers found alternative routes to avoid the
traffic lights that were in operation, and the consequent delays that followed. The route
through the village is normally used frequently by drivers gaining access to the A415. The
Culham bridge is at capacity for peak time traffic, and there is increasing frustration at periods
with queuing back over several hundred metres into the High Street.

4. The current foul water and sewerage system in the parish is at capacity. Properties in
Frilsham Street and High Street have suffered surcharging with sewage on more than one
occasion entering the property. Thames Water utilities have fitted an active drainage device to
one property in an attempt to prevent sewage leaking from a manhole. The experience of this
Council is that Thames Water regularly clears blockages in the system and has to jet the main
pipe network. No consideration has been given in the application to the accumulative effect
and the problems that the development would cause in the sewerage system elsewhere in the
parish. Thames Water itself has identified an inability of the existing waste water
infrastructure to accommodate the needs of this application. Given another application for 70
dwellings only a short distance away from this site, then the accumulalwe effect on the
village’s overloaded foul water system is paramount.

5. The proposed development is located just South of Mill Brook which feeds into Ginge
Brook and then the River Thames. In times of heavy rainfall and rising waters in the Thames,
the flow of water into the River Thames is controlled by the operation of sluices from Ginge
Brook. This results in more water in the Ginge which consequently results in flooding. Brook
Street (B4016) has had to be closed by the County Council in times past when Ginge Brook
has overflowed its banks causing flooding in the village. In 2007 properties iri The Nursery
were flooded out when the Ginge overflowed. In fact one or more access roads to the village
were c¢losed, this, and the previous Winter for a number of days. Traffic movements were
restricted for over a week,

The Parish Council is greatly concemed that using a SUDS system for surface water disposal,
and diverting surface water in the direction of the Ginge would only exacerbate the local

flooding problems given the known high water table, equally diverting, surface water into the
foul water system which is at capacity would only cause even more surcharging in the system.

Given the proposed development is outside of the built up area of the village, and the access is
at the entry point to the village where there is known speeding, the Parish Council believes the
proposal is confrary to existing policies NE9 which seeks to resist development which would
have an adverse impact on the landscape of the Lowland Vale, particularly on the long open
views across the area, and also DC3 which requires development to have safe and convenient
access from the adjoining highway network for all modes of transport.

The Parish Council would urgé refusal of thé‘éj:ﬁjiic'dti'(‘)n.'

Yours sincerely,
sty sk 7 o

Linda Martin
Clerk to the Council

Page 47



PIzVozE3HUL
MiLTOMN Roal>
APPw ZB

APPLICATION WEB COMMENTS FORM '

information available for public inspection and available on our website -
Location : Land to the north of 92 -112 Milton Road Sutton Courtenay

Proposal : Demolition of 110 Milton Road and erection of 34 dwelling houses with
associated access. o |

Application Reference : P13/V0233/FUL - 85

Piease complete

Your name : Drayton Parish Council

Your addresé :

Date : : 15 March 2013

Use the space below for your comments

Drayton Parish Council is concerned abdut the impact that the above
~ development would have on its residents and would ask the District Council to
take the following representations into account.

As you will know Drayton Parish Council is in the process of preparing a
neighbourhood development plan (Drayton2020) . Its vision is to ensure the
long-term sustainability of the village...". The District Council (see the 2011
Local Plan) acknowledges the car dependency of the villages, a point that
applies equally to Drayton and Sutton Courtenay. Whilst Drayton's NDP is at
an early stage and Sutton Courtenay may not yet have decided to prepare one,
the principle of sustainability is raised to the level of a 'presumption’ in the
NPPF. ‘ :

Both the developments of Milton Road would appear to be very car-dependent
due to the lack of facilities and employment within the village, and also bus
services that would appear to be even poorer than those serving Drayton. In
these circumstances a significant level of car traffic will be generated some of
which will impact on Drayton, and the road network used by Drayton residents;
driving, cycling and on the local buses. No permission should be granted
without contributions being made to both commercial and subsidised services
so as to ensure that the congestion on the local transport network is not
exacerbated.

Contributions towards irhprovements to the local cycle network would also be |
justified to mitigate the increase in traffic that would be likely to occur even if
~ the bus services were improved.

Page 48



Sutton Courtenay Parish Council should be consuited on what other local
services could be enhanced to improve the sustainability of the village so that
reasonable contributions could be sought from the deveiopment should it
receive planning permission.

The District Council should also be concerned, even were the location to be
made more sustainable, that the houses themselves would be constructed to a
standard in accordance with the NPPF and carbon reduction targets consistent
with the Climate Change Act 2008.

Page 49




Agenda ltem 12

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

APPLICATION NO. P13/V0344/FUL
APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION
REGISTERED 18 February 2013
PARISH GREAT FARINGDON
WARD MEMBER(S) Roger Cox

Mohinder Kainth
Alison Thomson

APPLICANT Bloor Homes Western
SITE Land Adjoining Folly Park Faringdon
PROPOSAL Proposed development of 28 dwellings, including

affordable housing, new access, landscaping and
associated works

AMENDMENTS None

GRID REFERENCE 429386/194936

OFFICER Martin Deans

—_
- O

1.2

1.3

2.2

INTRODUCTION

The application site is approximately one hectare in area and lies next to the recently
completed housing areas on the Folly Park View estate (the former Folly Farm), off
Park Road in Faringdon. The site has been used by Bloor Homes as the main
compound during the construction of the housing. It has an existing vehicular access
from Clements Way. A site location plan is attached as appendix 1.

The site is bordered on the north and west sides by housing in Clements Way and
Palmer Road. Inside the west boundary is a row of semi-mature trees. To the south
lies a recently completed attenuation pond that is part of the surface water drainage
system for the new housing development, and further south beyond this is a row of
mature poplar trees. To the east lies a drainage channel that is also part of the
surface water drainage system.

The site slopes up towards the north and there is a distinct change in level between
the northern limit of the site and the adjoining properties in Palmer Road. The
application comes to committee because of the number of neighbour objections.

PROPOSAL

This site has outline planning permission for new business development as part of the
Folly Farm development area. The applicants argue that the site is not attractive for
new business development given its relatively discrete location, tucked away from view
from main roads, and the depressed state of the current market where there is an
oversupply of land allocated for new business development. In support they also point
to paragraph 22 of the NPPF, which states that sites allocated for employment use
should not be prevented from being put to another use if there is no reasonable
prospect of the employment use coming forward and there is evidence of need for the
alternative use. The applicants refer to the current lack of a five year supply of housing
land in the Vale, which they consider proves the need for housing, and adds further
weight in favour of the proposal.

The application seeks full planning permission to build 28 dwellings on the site, 11 of
which will be affordable (which equates to 40%). Home offices will be provided above
three of the proposed domestic garages. Extracts from the application drawings are
attached as appendix 2. The proposed mix of housing is:

Page 50



2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

2 x 1-bedroom flats

2 x 2-bedroom flats

4 x 2-bedroom houses
17 x 3-bedroom houses
3 x 4-bedroom houses

The existing row of mature trees along the west boundary will be retained.

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS

Faringdon Town Council “has no objection to this particular planning application but
would like to be involved in discussions that may take place involving section 106
obligations.”

Neighbours have submitted ten letters of objection and two letters of observation. The
grounds of objection are:

¢ The site should be used for recreational purposes to help meet the demands of
the existing residents

e The application needs to be seen as part of the overall dense Folly Park View

estate and will add further problems

Further overdevelopment of the area

Additional traffic on already very busy and dangerous roads

Additonal strain on inadequate facilities in the town

Loss of view (this is not a material planning consideration)

County Engineer — no objections

Environment Agency — no objections subject to conditions
Principal Engineer (Drainage) — no objections subject to conditions
Countryside Officer — no objections

Housing Officer had requested amendments to the mix of affordable housing, to which
the applicants have responded. An update on this will be reported to committee.

Landscape Officer has concerns about the treatment of site boundaries to which the
applicants have responded. An update on this will be reported to committee.

Forestry Team had requested more information on the impact of the proposal on the
row of mature trees, to which the applicants have responded. A update on this will be
reported to committee.

Waste Management Team — no objections

Thames Water requests a Grampian-style condition for the assessment of local
sewerage capacity, and for the completion of upgrading works, if necessary, prior to the
first occupation of any dwelling.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

P08/V1078/RM - Approved (07/01/2009)

Approval of reserved matters for second phase (332 units) with related open space and
infrastructure.

Page 51



4.2

4.3

4.4

5.2

5.3

6.2

6.3

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

P08/V0793/RM - Approved (14/08/2008)
Approval of reserved matters for first phase housing (68 units) with associated open
space and infrastructure.

P06/V1939/0 - Approved (17/04/2008)
Demolition of residual tree nursery structures. New housing, business and leisure
development with ancillary infrastructure and landscaping.

The adopted local plan allocation for the Folly Farm site earmarked one hectare for
business development. The outline planning permission P06/V1939/0 approved the
application site for business development.

POLICY & GUIDANCE

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), published in March 2012, replaced all
previous PPG’s and PPS’s. In accordance with paragraph 215 of the NPPF, weight has
to be attached to relevant policies of the adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011
in relation to their degree of consistency with the NPPF.

Relevant policies from the adopted local plan are DC1 (design), DC5 (highway safety),
DC7 (waste collection), DC8 (mitigation of impact on local services), DC9 (impact on
neighbours), and H17 (affordable housing). These policies are considered to be fully
consistent with the NPPF, and should be given full weight.

Paragraph 22 of the NPPF states that sites allocated for employment use should not be
prevented from being put to another use if there is no reasonable prospect of the
employment use coming forward and there is evidence of need for the proposed
alternative use.

The Residential Design Guide was adopted in December 2009

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

The main issues for committee to consider are first, the principle of housing on the site;
second, the impact of the proposal on the character and appearance of the area; third,
the impact on neighbours; fourth, the impact on local services and facilities; and, fifth,
highway safety. With regard to the first issue, the applicants argue that the allocation of
the site for new business development is not realistic. The site is not prominent from
main roads, which reduces its attractiveness for new businesses.

Officers have given careful consideration to this argument, and are mindful of the
advice in paragraph 22 of the NPPF concerning the release of employment sites that
are unlikely to come forward. The application site is one hectare in area. To the south-
east of the site is the allocated employment site on the corner of Park Road and the
A420, which is much more prominent from the public highway, and is four hectares in
area. Half a mile to the south-west is another allocated employment site, at Rogers
Concrete, which also has much more prominence from the A420. The loss of the
application site from its allocated employment use would still leave these other two
allocated sites in Faringdon. There is also the issue of the current lack of a five year
supply of housing land in the Vale, to which significant weight needs to be attached.
Overall, officers consider that, given the existence of other more prominent employment
sites in Faringdon, it is unlikely that the application site will come forward for business
development, certainly in the short to medium-term.

Neighbours have requested that the application site be used for recreational purposes
instead, to help meet demand from existing residents. However, the site has always

Page 52



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

been allocated for development and was originally purchased by the applicants on that
understanding. Officers consider it would be unreasonable now to decide that the site
had to be used for recreational purposes. The masterplan for the development included
a significant extension to Folly Park and access routes from the new housing area into
Folly Park for use by residents. Consequently, following the advice in paragraph 22 of
the NPPF and the current shortfall in housing land, the use of the application site for
recreational use is not considered to be reasonable and its use for housing
development is considered to be acceptable.

Turning to the second issue, the designs of the proposed housing follow the types
permitted on the adjacent Folly Farm site, and are therefore considered to be
acceptable. Following requests from the council’s landscape officer and forestry team,
the applicant has submitted additional information concerning the boundary treatment
of the site and the relationship of the proposed housing closest to the existing semi-
mature trees on the west boundary. This information was being considered at the time
of writing the report, and an update on these matters will be reported to the meeting.

Regarding the third issue, the impact on neighbours, the nearest neighbouring
properties are in Palmer Road and Clements Way and lie to the north and west of the
site. The layout of the proposed housing has been designed so that the council’s
adopted minimum separation distances will be met. As a consequence there will be no
harm from loss of privacy. The site level is below that of the level of the housing to the
north, so there will be no harm from loss of light. The existing row of trees on the west
boundary provides an effective screen in this direction. Thames Water has requested
that a Grampian-style condition be attached to require assessment of local sewerage
capacity and the provision of upgrading works if necessary prior to the first occupation
of the dwellings. This condition can be added.

The fourth issue is the impact on local services. Oxfordshire County Council has
assessed the application and made requests for financial contributions towards
education, the local library, youth services, social services, waste management and the
county museum. These will be secured via a section 106 obligation. The Vale has
requested contributions towards the maintenance of public open space in Folly Park,
the provision of waste bins and street nameplates, and public art. The contributions that
have been sought are calculated to offset the impact on services by the future residents
of the scheme, and mean that the impact of the development on local services will be
acceptable.

The final matter is highway safety. The county engineer has assessed the application,
and concluded that the amount of parking and the proposed highway details are
satisfactory. Therefore, the county engineer has no objections on the grounds of
highway safety.

The application has a deadline for determination of 20 May 2013. Planning obligations
with both the Vale and Oxfordshire County Council are well advanced and, if committee
agrees with the recommendation, officers are confident that a decision can be made by
the deadline. To guard against unanticipated problems, however, the recommendation
includes authority to refuse planning permission if necessary should the application fail
to make the expected progress before the deadline for making the decision.

CONCLUSION

In the light of recent guidance in the NPPF, and the current lack of a five year supply of
housing land, officers consider the change in the use of the site from an allocated
employment site to housing is acceptable. The impact of the proposal on the character
and appearance of the area is also acceptable. Proposed separation distances are

Page 53



Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 8 May 2013

such that neighbours’ amenities will not be harmed, and financial contributions will be
used to offset the impact on local services. There is no objection on highway safety
grounds. Overall the proposal accords with relevant policies of the development plan,
particularly policies DC1, DC5, DC7, DC8, DC9, and H17 of the Vale of White Horse
Local Plan 2011, and with the NPPF.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION

8.1 Itis recommended that authority to grant planning permission is delegated to the
head of planning in consultation with the chairman and vice-chairman, subject
to:-

i) the completion of section 106 obligations with the Vale and Oxfordshire County
Council, to secure 40% affordable housing, financial contributions towards the
education, the local library, youth services, social services, waste management,
the county museum, maintenance of public open space, and for waste bins,
street nameplates and public art; and

ii) conditions, including external materials, slab levels, details of access and
parking, landscaping, works to protect trees, boundary treatments, details of
surface water drainage, and a Grampian-style condition for foul water drainage.

8.2 If the required section 106 obligations are not completed in a timely manner and
so planning permission cannot be granted by the determination deadline of 20
May 2013, it is recommended that authority to refuse planning permission is
delegated to the head of planning in consultation with the chairman and vice-

chairman.
Author: Martin Deans Team Leader (Applications)
Contact number: 01235 540350
Email: martin.deans@southandvale.gov.uk

Page 54



Aeearox T

e

!

e_\o\é\/‘ Firzivozyy

1]

fou

lod1-6013L

Supesey

FHSDE2 YB910 ISV A SUVOEE FRRL0 THOHAEF 1AL
HR 077 FHHEYILSINHCT LINaBImL
Wefvd CTELMONH ‘I5NCH ML
RPN GENESDIMID YO0 ST

opes| __ ELOZ H3

Sd  wen| MY @O00S

NYId NOILYOO

NOODNIHY
"W AT10d 440 Nyl

Colly Pk

N

BOILMLSHOD D13 S TS 0D TUYUYES
Hi QvIE 0L S

_\ “NOLETSLIITJS SHRELH AN STL0H




Az |vo34slFuL.  Aoceac2

-31071d 60L3AL

Bumai

FPSOAZ FASLAO SIWISIYH SBFIEE 13910 SNORGT L
HNE 0219 ‘THIHSHALSIDNOTI "ANNISIIMIL
YRivd TTAIMOMRENE "3SN0H NEILSaM
UM (AHNASDIMAL) BOOTE ST

uopbuie{ ‘wJie A|jo4 Jo pue

QE wm

‘D01 QLI 30 TUA AT O RCASEINEEA HELLLII . LeETonc
nmn»mizbﬁungngﬁiuz‘nmEagEmw;gd
.5 :z..

.n.sﬂmzu NF.ZL.ON ,m_mn
Sd wen| 2V T 0061 "oy

INOAVT ONINNY 1d

. NOJDNIYvd

IRV ATIOH 440 ANY'E wor|

2|qel pus ainjeay *

uemisod aB1, BAROIPUR %

Bupuend sageaipuf [osip)

aNaean

_u :




_H_ .>vm_ £0d-9Te "on Bmg | 0] Zf dweEN '
Sd IpRMIRUD|  0OTIT 3RS Bunema pag ¢ sdAL
7 umelq
£T02 NYL "23eq

A
X _
2} 9¢ 8 22'L€ SON 10Id-suoiieAa|g ke AR S
4 :Bumelq Buueld
m ShL bumeid | @ NOLLYAZTE 30IS NOILVAS TS tvax
y
B =
5 B
£
0
Z >
o
a
N
) L
d
@
[y
(al

NOILYATTE LNOYd

NOILYADTS 331S

ST



Bk

pOd-60zE "OM brag

Sd

PRy Q5:1 "3RS

/ umeaq

ETOZ NV(C "s1eqd

92 '8 G2 SON 10[d - suoneAs|g

:Bumeiy Buuued
9L buimeaq

B0ZE2weN
Bulemq peg € =dAL

“pde 5 Buen

P12 [No244 [Fue PABROo2,

NOILYATTE 3AIS

R

602 9dA|

NOLLYATTE dv3d

NOILYAZTA LNOHA

Pange 58

uuv A A




_ ” _ .>w~__ . £01d-#0ZE "ON Bma
O PRIBUD 007:7 "8|E1g

7 umesg
£I0T N¥L 212

6 ¥ 8 SCN 1014 - sueeAs|3
‘Bumelq Buuuerd

el Bumerg | @

F0CEBMEN

Buyjema pag ¢ =dAL

“EpAS 5, ButIp SR

Przlvesu4 [rue APErRoX 2

gy

NOLLYATT3 LNOYA

NOELVYAZITE LNOES

TR

y0ce
NOILVYATTI LNOHd

Paaa EQ
agc oY




Freivozyy |[Ful. APREoxR2,

A3y — £071d-+0z% “ON Bma

WY pEMI3YD
/ umelq

00T:T "9|238

£10Z NVT "23eQ

VZIEZ ON 10Id - SUOREAS|3
:Bumelq Buuueld

opuL buimelg

%

#OZE / £0TE PWeN
Buljem peg € "2dAL

a4k 5] BUMP 1.

- INTWSSHSSY S NOISTA SdAL SSNOH DIMINTD IHL H1iM H3IHLIID0L NOILYIIHIDZLS STYRALYIN ANV SILON NOILINELSNCD 3I4103dS HALIS / dNoYD 3

FE e

(bsyeze) bswgn 2L reary Joo)d

~ ¥02e/€0ce 8dAL

3 NOILYASTE dvI3d NOILVYAZIZ 3dIS
R e S SRR S ST = ; T T R 45 i
O

C

“ «

d

g

q

_ al

NOILVATTE LNOYJ NOILYATTZ LNO¥]

!

T

T

uyu A\ AV}

1yYdIS HLM NCILONNPNDD NI GV3d 39 Ol Si ONIMyHA SiHL




V10-SS 6013L

uopbulieq ‘wie Ajjo4 1o pue’]

did 210 TUIHSAENA
*TLODNITOVMS IVHSYIN ‘OvoM ASHSY
LW (SIDANISI HOOTES T

‘HOW CEUSO0Y 38 TIMALTIEVY] O WMSEIALE NELLITMA A LoSTx3.
RN HO BIINGONIEI T3 LOK VS GNY OTL0/5 (STOINEES) Hoo T ST
0 L01HAIOD T 34 TS0 SHHOM SHTIIE SHL ONY DRAVHO SHL.

Sd  pepea A BT o

[N g oy P oozl J—
SNOLLYATTT 133418 oL
NOGDNIYYL

WYYd AT10d 440 ONYT wor

1291 Sio)d b
“posines maae) Bemg mm g-g uojeas|3 R
MY | ErveL ©lns “PESIAGI Y-y UOTEASER 10 51 190 | ¥ _— s sasonl sozEeor po— e—
. o, et
“uojsIneL p
§Z L2 ‘2L SW0Id
- UoHEAST

‘NOIYHAIOIAS SIVISLYA ANV S3I0N
NOLLOITHLENOD DIA1D34S 1S { ANOHD TLYEYHIS
HLIA NOILONNPNOD NI CvEE 38 O §1 ONIMYEA SIHL




Agenda ltem 13

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 08 May 2013

APPLICATION NO. P13/V0457/FUL
APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION
REGISTERED 6 March 2013
PARISH CUMNOR
WARD MEMBER(S) Dudley Hoddinott
Judy Roberts
John Woodford
Eric Batts
Debby Hallett
APPLICANT Rivar Ltd
SITE 21 & 23 Eynsham Road Botley Oxford OX2 9BS
PROPOSAL Demolition of existing dwelling and garage and
erection of nine dwellings
AMENDMENTS 16 April 2013 — amendments to landscaping plan
GRID REFERENCE 448088/205900
OFFICER Stuart Walker

—_
—_ O

2.2

2.3

INTRODUCTION

This is a proposal to demolish the existing dwelling at 21 Eynsham Road and to
redevelop the site, including part of the rear garden of no. 23, with nine new dwellings.
It is a revised proposal to an outline application permitted in April 2012.

The application comes to committee because a number of letters of objection have
been received.

PROPOSAL

The application site is located on the south side of Eynsham Road, close to the junction
with Rose Gardens. It is surrounded by a mixture of single storey and two storey
dwellings. The site is approximately 100m long and 21m wide at the front (widening to
41m at the rear), and it rises gently from Eynsham Road by about 3m over the length of
the site.

The proposal involves the demolition of no. 21 Eynsham Road and the erection of nine
dwellings comprising seven three bedroom units of 1.5 and 2 storeys, one two bedroom
and one four bedroom dwelling both of 1.5 storeys (with rooms in the roof space). Plot
9 is located towards the front of the site and, in essence, replaces the existing dwelling.
Plots 7 and 8 are sited in line with the dwellings in Rose Gardens. The remaining
dwellings are sited on the southern part of the site, arranged in three pairs of semi-
detached units.

The proposal follows the previously approved layout, but with changes to the footprint
of plot 9 to remove the forward projection. The new dwellings are of a traditional
architectural approach that reflects local vernacular building styles. A copy of the plans
showing the location of the proposal and its design is attached at appendix 1. A copy
of the earlier approved layout is attached at appendix 2.

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS

Cumnor Parish Council: no objection, subject to a slab level condition to address
potential impact on 15A Rose Gardens. The parish council fully supports the conditions
requested by the drainage engineer and requests that hard surfaces are permeable.

Page 62



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 08 May 2013

The parish council also raises loss of privacy and parking as issues which need to be
taken into account.

County Highways: no objection, subject to condition.

Drainage Engineer: no objection, subject to conditions.

Thames Water Development Control: no objection.

Landscape Architect: no objection.

Forestry Team: no objection, subject to tree protection condition.

Architects Panel: Approve — the outline permission approved the density and principle,
and the amendments to plot 9 are acceptable.

Waste Management: no objections.

Nine letters of objection have been received from neighbours raising the following
concerns:
e Overdevelopment
Out of character
Massing, bulk and scale
Density
Traffic generation / highway safety
Loss of outlook / privacy
Noise disturbance / light pollution
Loss of trees
Drainage, hydrology and flood risk
Inadequate parking provision
Inadequate landscaping / amenity space

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
P13/V0224/D - Approved (01/03/2013)
Demolition of existing dwelling (no. 21) and garage.

P11/V1873/O - Approved (18/04/2012)

Outline application for demolition of existing detached dwelling and garage. Erection of
8 semi detached dwellings of 1.5 and 2 storeys and 1 detached dwelling of 1.5 storeys
with new access and associated parking.

P09/V2458 - Approved (12/02/2010)

Proposed single storey rear extension.

P07/V1927/O - Refused (10/03/2008)

Demolition of existing dwelling and garage. Erection of 8 semi detached dwellings of
1.5 and 2 storey and 1 detached dwelling of 1.5 storeys with new access and
associated parking.

P02/V1237 - Approved (10/09/2002)

Erection of a two storey side extension to form granny annexe.

P88/V2013/O - Refused (18/04/1988)

Erection of four dwellings.

Page 63



5.2

5.3

54

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 08 May 2013

POLICY & GUIDANCE
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 policies:

H10 - Development in the five main settlements
DC1 - Design

DC5 - Access

DC6 - Landscaping

DC8 - Provision of infrastructure and services

DC9 - Impact of development on neighbouring uses

Residential Design Guide (adopted in December 2009)

Section 4.2 states that the key factor in the sub-division of plots to provide one or more
additional dwellings is that the site’s context should dictate the approach for designing
and laying out the new buildings. New buildings need to fit comfortably within the
street, and there should be a positive relationship between the built form and the street.

National Planning Policy Framework
The National Planning Policy Framework confirms there is a presumption in favour of
sustainable development and within the overarching roles that the planning system
ought to play are a set of 12 core planning principles, the following of which are directly
relevant to this application:
i. Be genuinely plan led
ii. Not simply be about scrutiny, but be a creative exercise in finding ways to
enhance and improve the places in which people live their lives
iii. Always seek to secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity
for all existing and future occupants of land and buildings
iv. Take account of the different roles and character of different areas,
recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside and
supporting thriving communities within it

V. Support the transition to a low carbon future, taking account of flood risk and
encourage the reuse of existing resources

Vi. Contribute to conserving and enhancing the natural environment and

vii. Take account of and support local strategies to improve health, wealth, and

cultural wellbeing for all, and deliver sufficient community and cultural
facilities and services to meet local needs.

In delivering sustainable development, the framework sets out a variety of detailed
guidance and the following sections are directly relevant to this application:

i. Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes — housing applications
should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of
sustainable development and that relevant policies for the supply of housing
should not be considered to be up-to-date if a five year supply of deliverable
sites cannot be demonstrated. However, local planning authorities should
also consider the case to resist inappropriate development of residential
gardens, for example where development would cause harm to the local
area.

ii. Requiring good design — achieving high quality and inclusive design to
contribute positively to making places better for people by concentrating on
guiding the overall scale, density, massing, height, landscape, layout,
materials and access of new development in relation to neighbouring
buildings and the local area more generally and permission should be
refused for development of poor design that fails to take opportunities
available for improving the character and quality of an area and the way it
functions and

Page 64



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 08 May 2013

iil. Meeting the challenge of climate change and flooding — managing risks
through suitable adaptation measures to ensure flood risk is not increased
elsewhere.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

Character

This site is located within the Botley / Cumnor Hill area, an area that can accommodate
new housing development provided the layout, mass and design of the proposal would
not harm the area’s character (policy H10).

The development in the form proposed is not considered to be harmful to the character
of the locality. The layout and scale are essentially as previously permitted, with the
exception of the proposed changes to plot 9. The layout with the proposed
amendments to plot 9 fits with the urban grain of the area, and at a density of 33
dwellings per hectare the scheme is not considered to be an overdevelopment of the
site. The heights of the proposed dwellings are considered acceptable as other 1.5 and
2 storey dwellings exist in the vicinity. The proposed dwellings to the rear are also
considered to be appropriate, and they have been designed to work well with the site’s
varying levels. Sufficient amenity space is provided for each dwelling and the proposed
landscaping scheme (as amended) is acceptable.

Amenity

It is considered that no undue harm would be caused to those properties adjoining the
site in terms of light, outlook and privacy. The proposed dwellings have been carefully
sited and designed to respect the amenity and privacy of adjacent dwellings. Any light
pollution, noise and general disturbance arising from this development would not be so
significant to warrant refusal on amenity grounds.

Highways

Adequate visibility can be achieved at the access point to ensure highway and
pedestrian safety. Parking and turning arrangements within the site as shown on the
layout plan are also acceptable. Any additional traffic resulting from this development
would not be so significant to warrant refusal on highway safety grounds.
Consequently, the County Engineer has no objections to the proposal.

Drainage

The applicants have provided sufficient information on foul and surface water drainage
to demonstrate an acceptable means of sewage disposal and sustainable surface
water disposal from the site and, as a result, the council’s drainage engineer raises no
objection subject to a condition requiring the submission of further technical details.

Other material considerations

Financial contributions to offset the development’s impact on social infrastructure were
agreed as part of the outline permission and were subject to a S106 agreement. The
applicant has agreed to amend the agreement should planning permission be granted.

CONCLUSION

The proposal to demolish the existing dwelling and erect nine dwellings is considered to
be acceptable. It will not detract from the character of the area, and will not harm
residential amenity, flood risk, or highway safety. The proposal, therefore, complies
with relevant development plan policies.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the decision to grant planning permission is delegated to
the head of planning in consultation with the chairman and vice chairman of the

Page 65



Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 08 May 2013

planning committee subject to the completion of a legal agreement to secure
financial contributions to offset the impact of the development on social and
physical infrastructure and subject to the following conditions:

: TL1 - Time limit

: Approved plans

: MC3 - Materials in accordance with application

: HY6 - Access, parking & turning in accordance with specified plan
: MC24 - Drainage details (surface and foul)

: MC29 - Sustainable drainage scheme

: RE7 — Boundary details in accordance with specified plan

: RE17 - Slab levels (dwellings)

10 : Landscaping in accordance with specified plan

11 : Tree protection measures

O~NOOOGOA~,WN =

Author: Stuart Walker
Contact number: 01235 540505
Email: stuart.walker@southandvale.gov.uk

Page 66



moa pruoainSisis e muﬁ mﬂm P8 opder
iE T TGOS ANINMIN TNYT SOORRTY
;58 FiEVE BRADT  CWSYH ATIOH COREILLY NTNEG TR
Ry O Y PRUEATA wwet sagds

£1EFEL . SIS ey L0 9B8S e

SHSN0H 05 MO IN0AVT ZUS O350408d  sue
S8 20 PIOIG FoR00 'PROY WRUSIAT CNT e,

“Eofioun peds teysusa o) o Bupueta pel tued UONSAIY “SoeES el UNin- efnans 1q g Guygndea
syapuef sz o 2o} 50018 2050 iy ExEL Wity Swede s ouz iy aflewy SR - seekE
EOR0 A% 1% Y - S8RI0R Bugamt

{oAl it sy 3 05 e monr, - Reay sueqsuez oS Tou e

e i oz frwn ) Heany olme it feanont g i pe0s e] D06 a8t

s wge s 0 BuBies cnj 1 90 LTerooy gL (M D) S0 Soue (Ut - R0M pasadosd
‘R auginc s Bunied ey Bulnd ‘SENe PRABLS GG 1004 ‘995004 36 Bunys

sooy weusuia ey {40g¢] sasnoy ous :jeol

G0k | Dunwed %08 (U5 7058 3000 A0S Fi GUORRL) SG SSop psE Y o
$id | bupgied unnz- [Dd denssoal - Serois Yy EESlSRD eSO pREE oW}
£ | Bureed %002~ QT e 503 - Soicis i3 CAZAR) 1RO SeR0GPRET Dt
Dl | Bunped 9007 - 02 a0y - RUOK YL Cng) Dog BsnoNpeEE ool
fie § Bused gz - orod oy - faoey Gpoei eg) ssoHpese  ow
qﬁw Bupyed %07 - OUs.L WAL00Y » A0 Z L3700 090 SESOON RRET
$ioid § Buaowed - o' eslanog - foms 7 banglens SOSNGRRT My
T¥la | Duwed noz-00p/ weepieoy - ARG 7LnosO) g esoeg Wi |
FEad | Bupued - gp s eRe ok - K0S ZEU0ANL 0L esn0kipeRY W

HEE ARG | BHFY T TERERS

pufur Bity B
483 posy Pusiing Yl
fanpy auds i yjediony
tigy Witk pRod wng]
SO0 FRIDUS T WFY

TR G HARR BB S il

e

Page 67

o

Jang gdusspuny
1405 Spla Ty

App1

\

mﬁ" : mu:u wuut_v.m
u A
= : 1)
pasols s5375 Wy M
BULSS H
; - S CYON HUHSKAZ

|
I




D UL sl e ¢ Srwn aegdany
HES IR S A BT IOCIHGNYY
WIS BY¥E b VOIS MOTEC ZVED

e G YT FRERS, SIOL SR

SVEILE S BONIL e 3 BBGIS

s B

HOLLYAZIR

uo1 DAL

e

B ¥ ANOMS + NV HOOW GNROHD “AF T Ty £y RN ,wmww SO
BTN IAALAGICH TR L IO e S 2 Sl S
S5 D0 PG Hepog peoy weySuRE AT e 4 T BN ;
o [l U B
g
o
i
10014 punosg 0
; o Q) ©
: L2 \Li )
M w0023 034 (@)
: ©
B o
o | -
m w o B
0 e i
> ”
Wg uBYR 2

1S

54103k

EXa: 3 : i

e e e e TR B ST 0 g R T SR




s . i
s oy Fedepral me = ¢ SIFE £00TD SumydagEy, . oy H : : H 2] ; H : a1
. HILFIDY  SWEROES UTEasN CANY A00mEey :
LEAD3 WEVE ¥IMOT CWEVE ATION CDHEUS NDISIG TVED
WA ) W BEGRAFL SPMES Waqdns

_ USHDABIE 3PS M
SYEOEL e SRR £ 1 amgio

. ®
ROUYAZTE 30I8 B HvEE + RY'd 3007 Isuid
BO¥ S0 34AL 3BN0R -~ 8L 10T e

. . R Fa * ol
$E6 230 Propig Hepog peoy weysuhz Rl ‘ £

et
P
&

uo14uAR1d  4UBY

©
)
Page 69

>

PB/ e LGS%; v AW -




P3JUSGST el

SYIBEL s B e S 8BRiE

NOHVATTE 3G § INOHd + NYR! HOO GNNOHD
SENHALISNON - FEE A0 seee

ST6 X0 Piox0 Hafiog PR WRUSUAR T e

40014 PURDID

L e AN NP N

Buain

—

i { T
wm + mﬁﬁw W&EW ;
! i i i
1 aEyapy T i frmed
T 2 IS
3 3> i

IR EIEES

i
i

N

it
o

wwt
PN 3= B

:
Je3eN]

E P < / A 3._”/

S i
R B T I TA B LN

ool g
P .

Fuid

Butns N CLAunps

¢ ws
W3

GLER

sl AN AN

Wi, EH k2 £ .z L, o
) . ) ]
uo14pAall 3PS
G
gy - e p— ~
H L vof
\\n.m -

&

UOHDABYT  judld

sl

Page 70



S S e it

-

R

PEVEEI T

o> ek e ® - TEE Syele ok,
HILHOE FOHONES CAFIEWHR ERYT 00N
IEID WEYS FINOT  ONIVE STIOW OIS NIEST IYED
For Gl Y BRI SR st

A R e 91 BBGLE

NOUYASTE 205 B HV3Y + RYlg dOUH 15dd

880 IAALIEN0H - FBC 10T =

SHE THO MOXD Kepog ooy wWRisUAZ eI

J004

15414

-

&

o

UoLIBARIT

©

S

e

Lw
SR

%

=
o
[

N

)
)

N

e

R

B e
i K‘\‘
i

L o

I pagd

U0ILDAR) ]

Ey B s %
. N MY g

R 7% R LR S H H *
R - [ E i
B b
i H: E 4

41 nadr e i o Ll ;

—

i
‘.‘?5 H
S

S

Page 71



pin muogiadeaneeid e - TEET (90 Fodudapg
HigFIDE  JHHSNYAE “Aundman BLOURERYHE
EROD PR BEAOT  RODYR ATICH CRELY NDTEG Zves
oy [ Y PSRy BT PUANS

LEEITE R 81 ORG/E ..

NOUVAZTE 306 § INOMS + NYId OO ONROWS
Sof TEB0 ICALEBN0H ¥ 8BS 10T sy

SE5 230 pIops FIR0T 'Peoy WRUSHAS TIIE oy

o2

30014 punoeg

Uoiitaz)3  ueid

pOLL

iR 1A

DEGE

.

J

Page 72



T

A

o mefﬂ —

el BLIOERBLARRT (s 2 £t uvudsy
Bic eI ENIHANNET CAROEAY SOUNARNE

G0y PAIVE WEMOT CNEFH ATHR D HNOESRG VNG

o S AR s

SIEFTE e B L s g oegle

NOLIVAZE J0i8 % YR ¢ NYId HOOTE 1s¥ld-
088 RSB H4ALTAN0N - 988 10

$96 200 piopg 'Aapog peoy Emmmmmm ST

10014

$3414

Wy

goumAY

(o

apis

uol4BAT ]

108y




A A AR A

wea pusgRuBepIaE e e ¢ TIO5E SppigleuoydyRy
Hly HIDW DUESHESE CANOEMEN  ENYI ENTSERVE
GANOD VL BEMD)  NUVE ATTOH CDWENIS NOWSG TEED
Ry e G Laincars i saurer ades

VEETL  mg WEBMIIE e oo 98GIE L.

NOLLVAZTE 2NE ¥ INQMd + NYId ¥OUTd GNNOND
S50V IGOHSALIARNOH - 884 0 s

SHE ZN0 DopG fepog peoy WeBuAS Y e

j00id  punoug

) (D

uoyoABIY

apis

[ e

©0113A2]Y

100d 4

Page 74

& £ it 3 . A
rs E
3 i §
=4 1
6585 "l

654




“deg 12

A\

PfUEEs e

wo runogFuisprl weE © 7

el DETHSNSEE TANDRN

EEED PRIV WEMOT CNAVE AT COES vmv_.mum Nmsmu
T GTRR ¥R eREsly b ydaig

REET s NI e AR T

NOUYATYE 3018 7 dvdd NVTd ¥000d 1Suld
GEOS LB 4AIASA0H - BRI 10Td  sese

206 20 Moo Aegog ‘PROY WRESUAT GTHE e

10014 48314

e _J e

uoHLDAB}]  apIS

UnDAR| ] ingy

Page 75

PLETS




APP | Lo g (2

TE[UBLET B

w0 bR SIS (e 3

< ZIDEE 3550 Daoydpny

HITPIOY  TWRENNES CANIOMAN SNV S00DEMYE
ENAOT MOEE SRA0T CNEVE AT COIORLE MOISSQ 2RiD

B GG} WG SRS,

AL Kwes vagdasg

ELIOTL =y B

s Fio SESIE .o

NOUYATTE 3018 7 INOMd + NY'Td HOUH ONAOHD
EPIOSAALHSNOH - 8 10T ey

SHE Y0 DI ASEOR TRON URYSUAT TTHT oy

10014

puacsn

ST s
5 ...L,ﬁ.«uﬁs.‘«w
7 g . ¢
Apnig P i
P T
m\\l, Fy
S ST
—
uslh w1
; =3
L1
PN o
ol @
B .*m,”m.\w.,” : a
T e i _
i . RSN S
S 5 Py LA !
=

eI m\m /ir

B Ui

Yol 0813 3DIS

P A [P,

uyolsDAR|l  juoad

108

0048

Page 76



' (‘\m;;6§ : ;2;.,_.“

pE|vOLSH R

oo welb o FUE SIS FTES ¢ TIDEE ZEEH) MoyiaL
HifeHtE DUHSREE CAUNAmIN IR ADOHGYH
CRERDY WY YTMOT NUVE ATION OKIIS MNSI FvED
T R W PpSE, SRS Tt

SITETL  nec YO0l e YER D 96848

by g

NOLEYAZTE 306 9 dva +
NYTdA00N B HOOT L@
SPLUSJALSEA0H - § 10K

By

SHATXO PIOJXO “Ran0g peoy weysuAz gkl

OHASR ST 01 PORDE MODUP WDDNEOR PREE SA0SET SLEER

kG

VaRg

s
o

wiy ;

ugioAEl3 wumm

40014 45414

v ¥
S :is@

o ; F P ¥ P
S - .mu 5 Tm. o Al i - = N
ﬂu SOV i iUy oSS e i..ils:-alm,\*
. = Ly

ueEsAz1y  JD3Y

Page 77



o RS TeS a « LITED SENQ nudaal
ppswi  TUIASHNSH CEDERER CINYT ANKIMSSN
LI) Gy eV YEROT aEll ATION COIGHIE NgEEY AYED
@ . o UBQ} T FEIRSL S SRS

2 SURUTL  w RSl e VOE D BEEIE ooy
— SUDDEASKT + SUT 100 K 3003~ SSIIE 0D em ubld 100Y

268 TY0 pIOD REneg Py WRYSHAZ ETE e

pegniponea B BRER YR e i
i i

n,
L)
-
bt

s

T . A

gatiEy S0 o gin'e sabid
uB}d 400 . unyg 10514

™ | ap1s \ ]
1 Y o T . %ﬁmuf,:

;
31

PELITES
Ef o

DGR

o
i
H

Pisvsus
g

apis

¥ L M Lk e

= H
i
I S i
i & i

i M 1 M

;

i

Page 78



Pl%/V_ouS*?} L 2\ x 22 EYrSiAT RE OXLRH
AP 2 lf= | B

ROSE GARDENS

Rov Ai Parking revised, fire tonder manosuvring indicated EST 010208

SPRATLEY & WOOGDFIELD

Proposed slab levels
+0,00  Proposed site levels

CVERY FRRM . THAMEE . 0XAR TR
T ML MI4M P 0106 M4iced & PG rpraibe yanchibepeliahd Couk

woRE
21 & 23 EYNSHAM ROAD, BOTLEY, OXFORD

eLenT

P@QQ\J\ A MPM\_}‘EB MR R AORINSON & MR 8 EVANS

TR DRIoRITION

@uk.ﬂ_[ ME‘ LWWT BLOCK PLAN _

AL DS TO 81 CHECKED ON HTE. 00 10T BCALE, AN DISGREPANIY BETWEEN TH DAATIG AHY OTICH BFDAUATICH 10 28 REFERAED 10 SRATIWY A¥o0iilD @

DRTE AN BOME DAMN B0, PR
DEC'0T EST 1: 500 @ AY 750.02 A

Page 79



Agenda ltem 14

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report 8 May 2013

APPLICATION NO. P13/V0161/0O
APPLICATION TYPE OUTLINE
REGISTERED 25 January 2013
PARISH WANTAGE
WARD MEMBER(S) Charlotte Dickson
John Morgan
Fiona Roper
APPLICANT Mr & Mrs T A Gashe
SITE Former Orchard, Land West of Manor Road
Wantage OX12 8DW
PROPOSAL Outline application for two detached dwellings
AMENDMENTS None
GRID REFERENCE 439708/187322
OFFICER Mark Doodes

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 The site is a 0.18 ha field behind Manor Road, Wantage. The site abuts the
“Broadwater” site to the north, and is currently undeveloped. The Broadwater site has
planning permission for 14 homes which was allowed on appeal on grounds of the
lack of a deliverable five year housing land supply.

1.2  The Broadwater permission will need to be implemented before this scheme could be
built. A number of mature trees exist on the eastern half of the paddock which are in
the ownership of the applicant, and smaller trees exist along the west boundary and in
the north-west corner. The site is relatively flat. A few larger properties exist in the
area, set within generous plots and with medium height screening to the south and
more mature screening to the east.

1.3  The application comes to committee due to an objection from Wantage Town Council.

1.4  Alocation plan is attached at appendix 1.

2.0 PROPOSAL

2.1 The application seeks outline planning permission for two detached four bedroom two
storey dwellings on the western part of the field. The remaining area of the field, roughly
half, does not form part of the application site. Of note, is that the means of access (a

dog-leg section of road from Manor Road to the site, is included in this application.
Broadwater house must be demolished to proceed with this proposal. The site is
outside the settlement boundary.

2.2 Layout, scale and access are to be considered along with the principle of the proposed
development. The proposed dwellings are expected to be two storey larger family
homes, although the details do not form part of this application. In terms of layout, this
has been driven by the proposed access road, which leads off the Broadwater scheme,
details of which are attached at appendix 2.

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS

3.1 Wantage Town Council “Object. The proposed development is inappropraite in an area

which forms part of the {fAONB}. There remain issues concerning the management of
sewage for the adjoining development. It is inappropriate to consider any further
development in that area until such matters are resolved.”

Page 80



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

4.2

4.3

4.4

5.1

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report 8 May 2013

Thames Water — Concerns regarding the sewerage capacity in the area and surface
water drainage. However, no objections are raised subject to conditions to pre-
commencement conditions being imposed.

County Highways - No objections.

Drainage Engineer — Would prefer to see a mains drainage scheme, however it is noted
that this is not proposed. A scheme of surface and foul water drainage can be
controlled by condition.

Waste Management — Noted that a distance of over 30m will be required to transport
refuse bins for collection — this matter can be controlled at the reseved matters stage.

One letter of objection has been received from a neighbour raising the following
concerns:

Overshadowing, impact on the AONB, and general concerns about further development
in the area.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

P12/V2023/RM — Approved (20/12/2012)

Application for reserved matters for a residential development for the maximum of 18
units and associated works of demolition, construction of new access road and
landscaping (access not reserved).

P11/V2935/0 - Refused (01/02/2012)

Outline application for residential development for the maximum of 18 units and
associated works including demolition, construction of new access road and
landscaping. (Re-submission of refused application 11/01453/0OUT)

P11/V1453/0 - Refused (14/09/2011) - Approved on appeal (21/03/2012)
Outline application for residential development for the maximum of 18 units and
associated works including demolition, construction of new access road and
landscaping.

P10/V0163/O - Refused (13/05/2010)

Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of a new dwelling with recital hall and
recording studio.

POLICY & GUIDANCE
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 policies:

GS2 — Development in the countryside

H10 - Development in the five main settlements
H13 — Development Elsewhere

DC1 - Design

DC5 - Access

DC6 — Landscaping

DC7 - Waste collection and recycling

DC8 — The provision of infrastruture and services
DC9 - Impact of development on neighbouring uses
DC13 & DC 14 - Flooding and surface run-off

HE9 — Archeoloy

NE6 - North Wessex Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty

Page 81



5.2

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report 8 May 2013

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) — March 2012

Paragraphs 14 & 49 — presumption in favour of sustainable development

Paragraphs 34 & 37 — encourage minimised journey lengths to work, shopping, leisure
and education

Paragraph 47 — five year housing land supply requirement

Paragraph 50 — create sustainable inclusive and mixed communities

The Residential Design Guide was adopted in December 2009.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

The key issues in considering this application are:

1) The principle of the proposed development, specifically within the context of the
Secretary of State’s decision on the Broadwater site.

2) Site specific issues such as ecology, drainage, landscape impact, character impact,
access and parking.

In terms of the principle of the proposal, the key is the recent appeal decision at
Broadwater, which confirmed that the site’s location within the AONB did not preclude
its development. The site is located within a short distance of local schools, shops, and
other services that Wantage offers. The site is considered to be in one of the more
sustainable locations in the district, and is therefore considered to be complaint with
policy GS1 of the local plan.

At the heart of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Within the context of the NPPF, planning
permission should be granted where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant
policies are out of date, unless any adverse impacts would significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the proposed development when assessed
against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole (paragraph 14). This application is
considered to accord with the spirit of the NPPF, even taking into account the site’s
location within the AONB. This view stems from the Planning Inspectors view that the
AONB should be given less weight in this location when presented with an opportunity
to address five year land supply housing issues.

The current lack of a five year housing land supply is due to the lack of delivery of new
housing by developers rather than an under-supply of allocated housing land. This has
primarily been caused by delays in progressing some major allocations due to the
economic downturn and the delay in bringing forward the new local plan. The current
lack of a five year housing land supply requires some flexibility in line with the NPPF in
the consideration of planning applications which do not accord with current local plan
policy. This approach is by necessity of a time-limited duration and is aimed at
identifying suitable development sites to address the housing land shortfall whilst still
meeting the relevant sustainability and design requirements as set out in the NPPF.

These factors, particularly the prevailing lack of a five year housing land supply, mean
that the principle of the proposed development is considered to be acceptable.

Moving on to the site specific issues, a number of trees on the site are worthy of
preservation. The prime concern is that of landscaping. The Planning Inspectors recent
decision on the Broadwater site made a clear distinction between the open rolling
countryside of the AONB countryside proper and that on the fringes of a large town. It is
considered that the proposed development of two homes would be seen clearly within
the context of the built form which will envelope it (Broadwater) rather than the open
countryside to which the AONB designation suggests. To this end, the Inspector

Page 82



6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report 8 May 2013

recently noted of the site that contains many characterists of “urban fringe” and the
“...synthethesis between town and country.” The layout submitted with the application
shows that only a few of these trees will need to be removed. This matter can be
addressed by imposing a condition on the permission.

Local concerns have been raised about the local drainage infrastructure and sewerage
and surface water drainage issues. However, no holding objection has been raised by
Thames Water or the council’s drainage engineer, and conditions covering these
matters can be imposed on the permission. The applicants have stated their desire to
use subterranean sewage storage on-site rather than connecting to public sewers.
Thames Water appear to prefer a mains solution, however. In any event, these matters
can be dealt with by appropriately worded conditions, which will ensure that suitable
and satisfactory arrangements are made to the satisfaction of Thames Water and the
council’s drainage engineer. Therefore the application is considered to accord with
policies DC13 and DC14 by the use of appropriate pre-commencement conditions.

In terms of deliverability of the wider Broadwater site, it is noted that works on the
demolition of Broadwater have commenced. Despite this application being dependent
on the completion of a third party scheme, granting this permission is not considered to
be premature. This is due to the requirement that water, sewerage and drainage
infrastructure must be in place before development can be commenced. These works
could either be provided by the Broadwater scheme, the applicants or Thames Water
(though its investment programme), therefore this development could not proceed
without, firstly, reserved matters being granted and, secondly, such infrastructure
having been delivered. These matters are clearly fundamental to the scheme’s overall
viability and, therefore, it is in both the applicants’ and the third party’s interests that
such pre-commencement matters are properly dealt with. In addition, access to this
site can only be gained through the Broadwater site, so the risk that this development
may be delivered in isolation from the Broadwater scheme is negligible.

Given that the application seeks to exploit the current five year land supply shortage,
standard conditions imposed on all such permissions are recommended. The works
must be commenced within one year from the date of the outline permission and
reserved matters must be submitted within 3 months. Clearly pre-commencement
conditions must also be discharged prior to the commencement of development.

The application meets the required standards for parking, turning and other highways
requirements. Oxfordshire County Highways have raised no objections, subject to
conditions. The scale and layout of the scheme appear to reflect the density, scale etc
that one would expect in such a location. The separation from surrounding dwellings,
including those proposed at Broadwater, are considered acceptable in every regard
(privacy, sense of enclosure etc). As such the proposals are considered to accord with
policies DC1 and DC9 of the local plan.

An ecology survey has been submitted with the application. No protected species exist
on the site. No archaeology exists on the site.

CONCLUSION
The proposal does not accord with the development plan and has been publicised as a
departure. However, in light of the recent appeal decision at the adjoining site
(Broadwater) and the current shortfall in the five year housing land supply, the proposal
is considered acceptable on the basis of the following:
e Character & Landscape - the site is within the AONB, however will be seen as
part of a larger scheme for 14 homes, as a result, there will only be a limited

Page 83



Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report 8 May 2013

landscape impact.

e Sustainability — The site is within the vicinity of Wantage/Grove with a range of
access to roads, public transport, schooling, sports facilities and shops all within
a reasonable distance.

e New homes — Two new family homes will be delivered.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
Grant outline planning permission subject to the following conditions:
1 : Approved plans
2 : Commencement — One year from outline planning permission or 3 months
from the grant of final reserved matter, which must be submitted within 6 months
from outline.
3 : Surface water details prior to commencement
4. Drainage and sewage strategy details to be submitted prior to commencement
5. Parking, means of access, visibility splays to be approved by OCC highways.

6. Boundary details to be approved

Author: Mark Doodes
Contact number: 01235 540519
Email: mark.doodes@southandvale.gov.uk

Page 84



PIBNOI6T]0 Append |- St Plam -~ - Jor {

- SITE LOCATION PLAN : Manor Road Orchard

¢ing Fleld

T AN e ! it
- ~ L

Scale 1:2500 '

IR

'ForTA&RJ Gashe "~ N

Page 85



ONITEY) UNY Sl IUH WML UD FVDuCas)

2107 HIaW3id3s oz 3190
FOVLNYM QYO HONYW A0 ONYT

- D0SL FIVOS -

PIINVOLE [0 Dgpundix 2 = lampnk Plan

L..l§
LU @ASMHW

-z g

Pagé 86



	Agenda
	Map and vision
	3 Cumulative Housing Figures
	10 Land off Draycott Road, Southmoor P12/V2653/FUL
	P12V2653FUL Land off Draycott Rd Appx

	11 Land to the north of 92 - 112 Milton Road, Sutton Courtenay P13/V0233/FUL
	P13V0233FUL Milton Rd, Sutton Courtenay Appx

	12 Land adjoining Folly Park, Faringdon P13/V0344/FUL
	P13V0344FUL Folly Park Appx

	13 21 & 23 Eynsham Road, Botley P13/V0457/FUL
	P13V0457FUL 21 & 23 Eynsham Rd, Botley Appx

	14 Former orchard, land west of Manor Road, Wantage P13/V0161/O
	P13V0161O Manor Road Orchard Appx


